UEE
Legislative Council

LC Paper No. FC269/19-20
(These minutes have been
seen by the Administration)

Ref : FC/1/1(10)

Finance Committee of the Legislative Council

Minutes of the 10" meeting
held at Conference Room 1 of the Legislative Council Complex
on Friday, 10 January 2020, from 8:45 am to 10:44 am and
from 4:04 pm to 7:00 pm

Members present:

Hon CHAN Kin-por, GBS, JP (Chairman)
Hon CHAN Chun-ying, JP (Deputy Chairman)
Hon James TO Kun-sun

Hon LEUNG Yiiu-chung

Hon Abraham SHEK Lai-him, GBS, JP
Hon Tommy CHEUNG Yu-yan, GBS, JP
Prof Hon Joseph LEE Kok-long, SBS, JP
Hon Jeffrey LAM Kin-fung, GBS, JP

Hon WONG Ting-kwong, GBS, JP

Hon Starry LEE Wai-king, SBS, JP

Hon CHAN Hak-kan, BBS, JP

Dr Hon Priscilla LEUNG Mei-fun, SBS, JP
Hon WONG Kwok-kin, SBS, JP

Hon Mrs Regina IP LAU Suk-yee, GBS, JP
Hon Paul TSE Wai-chun, JP

Hon Claudia MO

Hon Michael TIEN Puk-sun, BBS, JP

Hon Steven HO Chun-yin, BBS

Hon Frankie YICK Chi-ming, SBS, JP

Hon WU Chi-wai, MH

Hon YIU Si-wing, BBS

Hon MA Fung-kwok, SBS, JP



Hon Charles Peter MOK, JP

Hon CHAN Chi-chuen

Hon CHAN Han-pan, BBS, JP

Hon LEUNG Che-cheung, SBS, MH, JP
Hon Kenneth LEUNG

Hon Alice MAK Mei-kuen, BBS, JP
Dr Hon KWOK Ka-Ki

Hon KWOK Wai-keung, JP

Hon Dennis KWOK Wing-hang

Dr Hon Fernando CHEUNG Chiu-hung
Hon Elizabeth QUAT, BBS, JP

Hon Martin LIAO Cheung-kong, GBS, JP
Hon POON Siu-ping, BBS, MH

Dr Hon CHIANG Lai-wan, SBS, JP

Ir Dr Hon LO Wai-kwok, SBS, MH, JP
Hon CHUNG Kwok-pan

Hon Alvin YEUNG

Hon CHU Hoi-dick

Dr Hon Junius HO Kwan-yiu, JP

Hon HO Kai-ming

Hon LAM Cheuk-ting

Hon Holden CHOW Ho-ding

Hon SHIU Ka-fai, JP

Hon SHIU Ka-chun

Hon Wilson OR Chong-shing, MH

Hon YUNG Hoi-yan, JP

Dr Hon Pierre CHAN

Hon Tanya CHAN

Hon CHEUNG Kwok-kwan, JP

Hon HUI Chi-fung

Hon Kenneth LAU Ip-keung, BBS, MH, JP
Dr Hon CHENG Chung-tai

Hon KWONG Chun-yu

Hon Jeremy TAM Man-ho

Hon Tony TSE Wai-chuen, BBS

Hon CHAN Hoi-yan

Members absent:

Hon Christopher CHEUNG Wah-fung, SBS, JP
Dr Hon Helena WONG Pik-wan

Hon IP Kin-yuen

Hon Andrew WAN Siu-kin



Action

Hon Jimmy NG Wing-ka, BBS, JP
Hon LUK Chung-hung, JP
Hon LAU Kwok-fan, MH

-3-

Hon Vincent CHENG Wing-shun, MH, JP

Public officers attending:
Ms Alice LAU Yim, JP
Mr Raistlin LAU Chun, JP

Mr Mike CHENG Wai-man

Mr Joshua LAW Chi-kong, GBS,
JP

Mr Thomas CHOW Tat-ming, JP
Ms Amy WONG Pui-man, JP

Mr Benjamin MOK Kwan-yu

Clerk in attendance:

Ms Anita SIT

Staff in attendance:

Ms Angel SHEK
Miss Bowie LAM
Miss Queenie LAM
Mr Frankie WOO
Miss Mandy POON

Permanent Secretary for Financial
Services and the Treasury (Treasury)
Deputy Secretary for Financial Services
and the Treasury (Treasury) 1

Principal Executive Officer (General),
Financial Services and the Treasury
Bureau (The Treasury Branch)

Secretary for the Civil Service

Permanent Secretary for the Civil Service
Deputy Secretary for the Civil Service (2)
Principal Assistant Secretary for the Civil
Service (Pay and Leave)

Assistant Secretary General 1

Chief Council Secretary (1)1
Council Secretary (1)1

Senior Legislative Assistant (1)2
Senior Legislative Assistant (1)3
Legislative Assistant (1)1

The Chairman reminded members of the requirements under Rules
83A and 84 of the Rules of Procedure ("RoP™).




Action

Item 1

— FCR(2019-20)33

2019-20 CIVIL SERVICE PAY ADJUSTMENT

2. The Chairman advised that this item invited the Finance Committee

("FC") to approve:

(A)

(B)

(®)

(D)

with effect from 1 April 2019, the following adjustments to
the civil service pay scales arising from the 2019-2020 civil
service pay adjustment:

(@ an increase of 4.75% in the dollar value of the pay
points in the directorate and upper salary band subject
to the pay points referred to in (i) and (ii) below the
dollar values of which should be as specified:

(i) Master Pay Scale ("MPS™) 34 at $74,515 and
MPS 35 at $75,265; and

(i) General Disciplined Services (Officer) Pay Scale
("GDS(0O)™) 20 and Police Pay Scale ("PPS") 36
at $74,390, and GDS(O)21 and PPS 37 at
$75,135; and

(b) an increase of 5.26% in the dollar value of the pay
points in the middle and lower salary bands;

corresponding adjustments to the provisions for aided
schools;

corresponding adjustments to the provisions for the
Independent Commission Against Corruption; and

corresponding adjustments to subventions which were
price-adjusted on the basis of formulae that included a factor
on civil service pay adjustment.

Proposed options for dealing with motions proposed by members under

paragraph 19 of the Finance Committee Procedure

3. The Chairman said that at the meeting on 13 December 2019,

Mr HUI Chi-fung raised a proposal under paragraph 19 of the Finance
Committee Procedure ("FCP") ("FCP 19 motion™) seeking FC to summon a
public officer to attend the relevant meeting(s) to testify or give evidence in



Action

-5-

relation to agenda item FCR(2019-20)33 on 2019-2020 civil service pay
adjustment. In view of the absence of specific practice and procedure to
handle such proposal(s), the Chairman put forth three options, i.e. Options
A, B and C, for handling the FCP 19 motions proposed by members under
FCR(2019-20)33 (the details of Options A, B and C were set out in
LC Paper No. FC72/19-20(01)).

4, The Chairman further advised that at the meeting on
20 December 2019, having regard to members' views and suggestions, he
invited members to put forth further options and subsequently ruled that the
three options proposed respectively by Mr Paul TSE, Mr CHU Hoi-dick
and Dr Fernando CHEUNG, i.e. Options D, E and F, were in order (the
details of Options D, E and F were set out in LC Paper No.
FC72/19-20(02)).

5. The Chairman said that he would, first of all, call upon Mr Paul
TSE, Mr CHU Hoi-dick and Dr Fernando CHEUNG to briefly introduce
their options, and each might speak for not more than two minutes. He
also directed that members might press the "Request-to-Speak" buttons to
speak on the aforesaid six options, and each might speak for not more than
five minutes. After the debate was closed, he would put questions on each
of the aforesaid six options to vote so that FC might decide on which
option should be adopted to handle FCP 19 motions.

Points of order

6. Mr HUI Chi-fung raised a point of order on how FC should handle
FCP 19 motions. First of all, he held that FC should directly vote on the
FCP 19 motion proposed by him. If FC voted on the adoption of one of
the aforesaid options for dealing with FCP 19 motions in the first place, it
was tantamount to depriving the right of members to propose FCP 19
motions to exercise the summoning powers conferred upon FC by relevant
provisions. He also referred to FCP 37 which provided that subject to the
decisions of the Committee made from time to time, Rules 29 to 35 of RoP
shall apply, with necessary modifications, to the proceedings of the
Committee in dealing with motions. He queried why FCP 37 was
inapplicable to the handling of FCP 19 motions.

7. In respect of Option A put forth by the Chairman, Mr HUI Chi-fung
considered that Option A was proposed by the Chairman with reference to
the procedure as provided for under FCP 37A to cater for the situations
where motions were suddenly proposed by members without notice, which
was a decision made on the premise that the FCP 19 motion was proposed
by him at the meeting on 13 December 2019 without notice. Given that




Action

-6-

he had subsequently given written notice of his proposed FCP 19 motion
two clear days before the meeting held on 20 December 2019, and the
aforesaid consideration therefore no longer existed, the Chairman should
withdraw Option A. He requested the Chairman to invite the Legal
Adviser ("LA") to attend the meeting to respond to members' enquiries.

8. The Chairman said that FC had spent a number of hours on
discussing the questions raised by Mr HUI Chi-fung at the meeting held on
20 December, and LA had also provided unequivocal responses to such
questions. The Chairman directed that the Secretariat should, after the
meeting, provide a written reply to the views raised by Mr HUI.

[Post-meeting note: A summary of Mr HUI Chi-fung's views and a
relevant information note prepared by the Secretariat were issued to
members on 5 March 2020 vide LC Paper No. FC107/19-20(01).]

The number of times that members were allowed to speak

Q. Mr James TO and Mr HUI Chi-fung expressed dissatisfaction with
the arrangement under which each member could only speak once for not
more than five minutes. They considered that FC's handling of FCP 19
motions had far-reaching effects. As there were a total of six options
under discussion, it was utterly difficult for members to elaborate in detail
their views on all six options within as short as five minutes. Mr TO
proposed that the Chairman should at least allow each member to speak
twice, so that members could have a chance to reply after listening to the
speeches made by other members.

10. The Chairman advised that the relevant speaking arrangement was
clearly set out in LC Paper No. FC72/19-20 issued by the Secretariat to
members on 8 January 2020, i.e. members might speak on the six options,
and each member might speak for not more than five minutes. He
considered the aforesaid arrangement appropriate which could ensure the
efficient conduct of meetings. However, in consideration that Mr James
TO, as the first member to speak at the meeting, might not fully understand
the speaking arrangement, he could exercise his discretion by giving an
extra three-minute speaking time to Mr TO, while other members still
could only speak once for not more than five minutes.

11. Dr Priscilla LEUNG remarked that the speaking time allowed for
each member should be equal, and that Mr James TO should not be given
additional speaking time only because he had raised objections. Mr Paul
TSE pointed out that the duration of debate on procedural motions was
generally shorter. He and Dr Junius HO considered that members should




Action

-7-

follow the Chairman's decision that each member might only speak once
for not more than five minutes, and should not argue further on the
speaking arrangement. Mr _James TO criticized that the Chairman's
decision was unfair to other members, and he would give up the extra
three-minute speaking time offered by the Chairman.

Voting arrangements

12. Mr CHU Hoi-dick and Mr James TO were concerned about the
voting arrangements. According to LC Paper No. FC72/19-20, the
Chairman proposed that the questions on each of the aforesaid six options
be put to vote according to the timing of their submission, i.e. in the
sequence of Option A, Option B, Option C, Option D, Option E and
Option F. Mr CHU considered that the Chairman adopted two separate
sets of benchmarks in determining the voting sequence: as Options A, B
and C were concurrently put forth by the Chairman for FC's consideration,
the voting sequence of Options A to C was determined not according to the
timing of submission, but simply according to the alphabetical order of the
names of the options. By contrast, the voting sequence of Options D, E
and F was determined according to the timing of submission. He
considered the relevant arrangements unreasonable.

13. Mr CHU Hoi-dick and Mr James TO were of the view that the
voting sequence of the options would affect their chance of being adopted,
I.e. the option being voted upon earlier would stand a better chance of
being adopted. They queried that the Chairman, during FC's discussion
on the handling of FCP 19 motions, enjoyed the edge and authority to put
forth three options before everyone else could do so without giving prior
notice to members that he would determine the voting sequence of options
according to the timing of submission, and this was unfair to members who
submitted options at a later time.

14.  The Chairman instructed the Clerk to respond to the above queries.
The Clerk advised that in the case where no applicable rule was available,
the voting sequence of proposals or motions should be determined by the
Chairman. According to FC's established practice, FC would make
reference to the relevant practice adopted for handling motions/proposals at
Legislative Council meetings, i.e. the voting sequence of relevant motions
or proposals was determined according to the timing of submission.

15. The Chairman said that the six proposed options were alternative
proposals, and under the circumstances that both RoP and FCP were silent
on the voting sequence of this type of proposals, the voting sequence of the
options was determined by the Chairman. Having regard to the



Action

-8-

precedents of FC in dealing with this type of proposals, he decided that the
voting sequence of the options should be determined according to the
timing of their submission. Regarding the sequence of Options A, B and
C, the Chairman pointed out that as these three options were put forth by he
himself and all three options were named by alphabets and arranged in
alphabetical order, he considered it appropriate that the voting sequence of
these three options should follow that order. He stressed that determining
the voting sequence of the options according to the timing of submission
was in line with FC's established practice. However, in the light of the
views expressed by members, he decided to revise the voting sequence of
all options by drawing lots so that meeting time would not be wasted on
arguing on this matter, but it should not be regarded as a precedent.
Regarding the letter from Mr CHU Hoi-dick dated today (10 January 2020)
on the voting arrangements in respect of the proposed options for handling
FCP 19 motions and other related matters, the Chairman directed that the
Secretariat should provide a written reply after the meeting.

[Post-meeting note: Mr CHU Hoi-dick's letter and a relevant
information note prepared by the Secretariat were issued to
members on 5 March 2020 vide LC Paper No. FC107/19-20(01).]

Debate on the options

16. At 8:58 am, at the Chairman's invitation, Mr Paul TSE, Mr CHU
Hoi-dick and Dr Fernando CHEUNG briefly introduced their respective
options. A total of 24 members (including the three members who had
put forth options) spoke on the six options. At 4:45 pm, after other
members had spoken, Mr CHU Hoi-dick spoke in reply at the Chairman's
invitation. Mr Paul TSE and Dr Fernando CHEUNG did not speak in
reply as they were not present at the meeting at that juncture.

17. At 4:48 pm, the Chairman declared the closure of the debate
session, and proceeded to drawing lots to determine the voting sequence of
the options.  After drawing lots, it was determined that FC would vote on
Option C first, followed by Option F, Option A, Option B, Option D, with
Option E coming last. The Chairman reminded members that since the
six options were independent alternative proposals, if in the course of
voting, the question put on any of the options was passed by a majority of
the members present and voting, it implied that FC had made a decision to
adopt the option. By then, he would not put questions on the remaining
options to vote.

18. At 4:49 pm, the Chairman put to vote the questions on the adoption
of the relevant options by this Committee one by one according to the




Action

-9-

sequence returned by drawing lots. At members' request, the Chairman
ordered a division in respect of each question put. At 5:16 pm, FC voted
in favour of the question that Option D be adopted. Therefore, the
Chairman did not put the question on Option E to vote.

19.  The voting results on various options were as follows:

Option Voting result
Option C Negatived
Option F Negatived
Option A Negatived
Option B Negatived
Option D Passed

20. The Chairman advised that under Option D, FC must immediately
vote on whether exercising the summoning power conferred by FCP 19
was required. The Chairman forthwith put the question "[T]hat this
Committee agrees that in respect of item FCR(2019-20)33, exercising the
summoning power as provided for under paragraph 19 of the Finance
Committee Procedure is required" to vote. At the request of members, the
Chairman ordered a division. At 5:22 pm, FC voted against the exercise
of the summoning power as provided for under FCP 19.

21.  The verbatim transcripts of the proceedings relating to the handling
of the FCP 19 motions proposed by members were in the Appendix.

Order of the meeting

22. At 10:43 pm, when speaking on the six options, Dr KWOK Ka-ki
described the Chairman as "a eunuch"”. The Chairman warned Dr KWOK
twice and requested him to withdraw his remark. As Dr KWOK refused
to withdraw his remark, the Chairman ordered him to withdraw from the
meeting.

23. At 10:44 am, the Chairman announced that the meeting be
suspended. The meeting resumed at 4:04 pm.

Continuation of the discussion on item FCR(2019-20)33

24. At 5:22 pm, FC continued with the discussion on FCR(2019-20)33.


https://www.legco.gov.hk/yr19-20/chinese/fc/fc/results/fc202001101v1.pdf
https://www.legco.gov.hk/yr19-20/chinese/fc/fc/results/fc202001101v2.pdf
https://www.legco.gov.hk/yr19-20/chinese/fc/fc/results/fc202001101v3.pdf
https://www.legco.gov.hk/yr19-20/chinese/fc/fc/results/fc202001101v4.pdf
https://www.legco.gov.hk/yr19-20/chinese/fc/fc/results/fc202001101v5.pdf
https://www.legco.gov.hk/yr19-20/chinese/fc/fc/results/fc202001102v1.pdf

Action

-10 -

Applicability of the proposed pay adjustment

25. Dr CHENG Chung-tai was of the view that it was inappropriate to
handle civil service pay adjustment according to established mechanism at
the present time. Given the social incidents in the past six months, some
civil servants were dissatisfied with the management.  As the
Administration did not put in place any measures to deal with the closure of
many small and medium enterprises, the salary of the management should
be cut. The high-ranking government officers and the political
accountability team should take the initiative to cut their own salaries while
the salaries of civil servants should also be freezed, given that when Hong
Kong's economy experienced problems in the past, the salaries of civil
servants were freezed and the differences would be recovered in the pay
adjustment for the coming year. He asked the Secretary for the Civil
Service how he managed the Civil Service Bureau, how he maintained the
morale and upheld the culture of civil servants, as well as whether the
Overtime Allowance ("OTA") granted to police officers had exceeded
$1 billion up to the present.

26. Secretary for the Civil Service ("SCS") replied that the proposed
civil service pay adjustment was determined according to established
mechanism with reference to such data as the pay trend indicators ("PTIs")
of private organizations in Hong Kong during the 12-month period
preceding the proposal (covering the 12-month period from 2 April 2018 to
1 April 2019), the state of Hong Kong's economy, the Government's fiscal
position, etc.  The current civil service pay adjustment proposal, supported
by civil service bodies, was approved by the Chief Executive-in-Council
("CE-in-Council™) in June 2019, and was originally scheduled for
discussion at FC's meeting held in July 2019. The impact of the social
incidents that took place after June 2019 on the relevant factors would be
reflected in the Pay Trend Survey ("PTS") for the coming vyear.
Information on the amount of OTA granted to police officers was available
up to November 2019 only. In any case, OTA calculation and annual pay
adjustment were governed by two separate systems which were irrelevant
to FC's discussion on the annual pay adjustment.

Job-related allowances of the Hong Kong Police Force

217. Dr CHENG Chung-tai requested the Administration to provide the
following information:

(@) the updated amount of expenditure on OTA granted to
police officers since June 2019; and



Action

-11 -

(b)  the compensation arrangement and calculation method in
respect of the overtime work undertaken by other
comparable disciplined services officers (e.g. firemen) and
healthcare personnel of the Hospital Authority as well as
data on the OTA and/or time off in lieu ("TOIL") (if
applicable) granted to them during the aforesaid period, so
as to facilitate members' deliberation as to whether the
expenditure on OTA for police officers in the same period
was at a reasonable level.

SCS advised that the Administration would provide the aforesaid
information after the meeting.

[Post-meeting note: The supplementary information provided by
the Administration was issued to members vide LC Paper No.
FC158/19-20(01) on 21 April 2020.]

28. Mr Charles Peter MOK asked why only the police officers in the
Hong Kong Police Force ("HKPF") were entitled to OTA, as well as
whether supplementary provisions would be sought for the amount of OTA
granted to police officers, which stood at more than $900 million, upon the
granting of approval for the proposed civil service pay adjustment; if so,
the amount of such supplementary provision.

29. SCS replied that according to the prevailing overtime work
compensation mechanism, overtime work should normally be compensated
by TOIL. Only when it was, or was likely to be, impractical to arrange
TOIL within one month from the date when overtime work was performed
that an OTA might be payable to eligible officers. The rate of pay
adjustment for civil servants would affect the basis on which the amount of
OTA was calculated.  After obtaining approval for the proposed
2019-2020 civil service pay adjustment, the effective date of the adjusted
OTA rates would be set retrospectively at 1 April 2019. As at November
2019, the OTA of HKPF would increase by about $50 million.

30. Citing LC Paper No. FC67/19-20(01) in which the Administration
had, at his request, provided information on the job-related allowances
("JRA") of HKPF, Mr CHU Hoi-dick referred to the "Special Allowance
for Performing Undercover Duties" and "Special Allowance for Officers
Performing Regular and Frequent Detective Duties" set out in the
Appendix to Annex Il to the paper. He enquired about the rates of the
special allowances, a breakdown of the relevant figures and the numbers of
recipients of these two special allowances. Regarding the "Extra Duties




Action

-12 -

Allowance for Disciplined Services (General)", i.e. an allowance granted to
officers who had to use breathing apparatus regularly when performing
duties, as mentioned in category (a) under paragraph 3 of Annex Il, he
enquired whether and from when the allowance was applicable to the
Customs and Excise Department only. Noting from paragraph 7 of
Annex |l to the paper that in the past six months (June to November 2019),
HKPF’s total expenditure on local subsistence allowance was
approximately $50 million, he also enquired about the criteria based on
which such allowance was granted.

31. Deputy Secretary for the Civil Service (2) ("DSCS(2)") replied that
the granting of JRA for police officers was not directly related to the
agenda item under consideration.  Given that the dollar value of individual
pay points would be adjusted in tandem with civil service pay adjustment,
the rate of JRA, which was calculated as a percentage of relevant pay
points, would therefore be adjusted correspondingly. In the past six
months (June to November 2019), HKPF's total expenditure on JRA was
approximately $85 million, which was generally on a par with HKPF's total
amount of JRA for the whole year in 2018-2019 (around $170 million).

32. Mr_ WU Chi-wai pointed out that according to the aforesaid
information paper, the expenditure on JRA of HKPF included the granting
of "Special Allowance for Performing Undercover Duties". While the
Police had indicated that there were police officers performing undercover
duties in the large-scale social movements, HKPF's total expenditure on
JRA from June to November was generally on a par with the corresponding
amount incurred in the past when there was no such large-scale social
movements. Mr WU asked whether HKPF had deployed resources from
other JRA for OTA payment for police officers performing relevant
undercover duties, if HKPF had indeed deployed police officers to perform
undercover duties in relation to the social movements.

33. DSCS(2) replied that apart from frontline police officers, some
civilian grades officers were also entitled to HKPF's JRAs. While a
figure-wise comparison showed that HKPF incurred similar levels of total
expenditures on JRA in the past two years, it could not be deduced merely
from such a comparison that HKPF had reallocated its resources or adopted
other operational arrangements.

Civil Service Pay Adjustment Mechanism
34. Mrs Regina IP advised that as Hong Kong's economic situation in

2018 was rather satisfactory, the proposed rates of pay rise based on PTS
results were desirable. However, as our economy was affected by the




Action

-13 -

social incidents that took place in the latter half of 2019, it was anticipated
that tides of business closing down would appear one after another, and a
large unemployed population was poised to grow in 2020. She asked
whether the Government would propose legislative amendments to reduce
the salaries of civil servants in case Hong Kong slipped into economic
recession in 2020 with escalating unemployment rate. She also asked
whether the pay adjustment mechanism for politically appointed officials
was the same as that for civil servants. She was also of the view that
voluntary pay reduction should be offered by politically appointed officials.

35.  SCS replied that both the annual PTS and the civil service pay
adjustment mechanism would take into account such relevant factors as the
state of Hong Kong's economy, the Government's fiscal position, etc. The
impacts of the recent social situation would be reflected in the next PTS.
By that time, the Government would consider increasing, reducing or
freezing the salaries of civil servants, having regard to PTS results and all
other relevant factors. No estimation could be made at the present stage.
Pay adjustment for politically appointed officials was made in accordance
with established mechanism in tandem with the changes in Consumer Price
Index (C). He noted Mrs Regina IP's views on voluntary pay reduction by
politically appointed officials, and would convey such views to the relevant
authorities.

36. Mr LEUNG Yiu-chung noted that civil service pay was adjusted
according to established mechanism under which after the staff side of the
four central consultative councils submitted individual pay claims to the
Government, CE-in-Council would propose the pay adjustment offers,
having regard to six relevant factors including the pay claims of the staff
side. In respect of civil service morale, which was one of the six relevant
factors, he asked how it was measured, as well as the criteria or indicators
based on which such measurements were made. Regarding those civil
servants who were extremely disappointed at the performance of HKPF in
the past six months, how the Administration would make use of pay
adjustment to compensate these civil servants to address their
dissatisfaction and mitigate the impacts on civil service morale.

37.  SCS replied that civil service morale could not be quantified. He
and his colleagues would, from time to time, go to various government
departments to visit civil servants and understand their work situation.
They also met with representatives of various civil servants associations
and unions to listen to their views which included their work pressure and
how to cope with such pressure. In terms of pay adjustment, they would
also pay heed to civil servants' aspirations towards pay adjustment to assess
civil service morale. Pay adjustment was not a means for making



Action

-14 -

compensation, but a means to recognize the performance of and provide
incentives for civil servants.

38. Mr Alvin YEUNG enquired about the duration for which the effect
of boosting civil service morale might last after the proposed civil service
pay adjustment was approved. He also asked how the Administration
came to know whether the civil service morale was low and whether civil
servants were satisfied with the relevant pay adjustment if it was
impossible to measure civil service morale.

39.  SCS replied that the Administration would spare no efforts in
raising the job satisfaction of civil servants and providing sufficient support
for civil servants who had to work under immense pressure, including the
provision of psychological counselling service for civil servants.
However, raising civil service morale could not happen overnight, neither
could it be achieved through annual pay adjustment only. In case the
proposed pay adjustment was not approved, civil service morale would
definitely be seriously affected. The rate of pay rise as proposed in the
current funding proposal was determined by CE-in-Council after balancing
the six relevant factors which included civil service morale.

Handling of pay adjustment by non-governmental organizations

40. Mr SHIU Ka-fai noted that after the proposed 2019-2020 civil
service pay adjustment was approved, civil servants would be given
back-payments in respect of the salary increase between 1 April 2019 and
the date on which the pay adjustment was approved. He asked whether
staff members of non-governmental organizations ("NGOs") would also be
able to receive such back-payments.

41. In reply, SCS said that the back-payment arrangements under
annual civil service pay adjustment exercises differed among individual
NGOs, depending on the employment contracts entered into between the
relevant NGOs and their employees. Nevertheless, after the proposed pay
adjustment had been approved, the amounts of subventions to individual
NGOs would be adjusted correspondingly. The Government cherished
the hope that such organizations would make use of the adjusted
subventions to adjust the salaries of their staff. The employees of some
NGOs might not receive such back-payments, e.g. individual NGOs might
not offer back-payments for their employees who left the organizations
after 1 April 2019 but before FC's approval for the proposed civil service
pay adjustment.



Action

- 15 -

Pay adjustment for non-civil service contract staff

42. Noting that the Government's non-civil service contract ("NCSC")
staff would not benefit from the civil service pay adjustment, Mr KWOK
Wai-keung was concerned that as their base salaries were different, the
cumulative rate of pay rise would also be affected. He enquired about the
existing number of NCSC staff in the Government, the measures to be
adopted by the Administration in coping with possible legal proceedings
that might arise if the pay adjustment for HKPF had to be singled out for
handling, as well as whether it would consider not adjusting the salaries of
those LegCo members whose performance had aroused dissatisfaction
among members of the public.

43. In reply, SCS said that the number of NCSC staff in the
Government stood at about 10 000 at present, and various government
departments would, according to corresponding mechanisms and
benchmarks, consider adjusting the salaries of these employees at different
times. In 2018-2019, the pay adjustment for about 60% of NCSC staff
was similar to that for civil servants. There was an important set of
"Internal relativities" among the salaries of civil servants in different
grades, and among different pay scales. If the Government arbitrarily
revised individual pay scales in a way that was different from other pay
scales, it might distort the set of "internal relativities", thereby dampening
civil service morale.

44, At 5:58 pm, the Chairman said that there were two members on the
wait-to-speak list. If there were no other members who intended to speak,
he would put the item to vote after the two members on the wait-to-speak
list had spoken.

45. At 6:09 pm, the Chairman said that members intending to propose
motions under FCP 37A should do so expeditiously.

Disciplinary procedures of the civil servants

46. Mr HUI Chi-fung did not agree to the procedure through which FC
had handled the motions on summoning the Commissioner of Police
("CP"), and expressed dissatisfaction about how members in the
pro-establishment camp had voted on the motions. He asked the
Administration how it would handle pay adjustment for civil servants who
had allegedly breached the law as civil service pay adjustment was to be
considered indiscriminately on the whole and pay adjustment for civil
servants in individual departments should not be handled separately. He




Action

-16 -

asked whether the Government would penalize and dismiss the relevant
police officers as the Government would, according to established
mechanism, penalize those civil servants who had committed criminal
offences. He also asked whether there were police officers among the
civil servants who had been arrested by HKPF.

47. Expressing strong dissatisfaction about the current interdiction
arrangement for police officers who had allegedly breached the law,
Mr Charles Peter MOK pointed out that the majority of members of the
public were dissatisfied with the performance of the Police. He also said
that the Administration, which regarded LegCo as a rubber stamp, was
reluctant in reforming the current problematic system as it was sure that its
proposals would definitely get LegCo's green light. He said members of
the public were also extremely dissatisfied with the Government's attempt
to polarize members of the public.

48. Mrs Regina IP did not subscribe to the views of some members that
the majority of members of the public were dissatisfied with the
performance of the Police. She pointed out that many members of the
public (including more than 600 medical practitioners) had earlier
advertised in the newspapers to give signature support for the Police's law
enforcement work.

49, In reply, SCS said that various avenues were available for the
Government to handle the illegal acts of civil servants. Noting that some
members and members of the public had views on the performance of
police officers, he reiterated that the Government would solemnly deal with
all civil servants who had allegedly breached the law. Like all other civil
servants, police officers would be subject to disciplinary procedures if they
were convicted by the court, and such disciplinary procedures might lead to
the dismissal of the relevant police officers. The Government would not
respond to questions on whether there were civil servants in individual
departments who might have committed illegal acts.

50. Mr LAM Cheuk-ting considered that everyone had witnessed how
HKPF had performed in the past six months, including police brutality,
indiscriminate arrests, etc. Many members of the public were dissatisfied
with the performance of the Police. He asked the Administration whether
civil servants should, in the course of work, speak along the Government's
official line, in particular when the personal views of civil servants differed
from the official stance. He enquired about the reasons why the
spokesperson of the Police, during a television interview and in the course
of work, had claimed that he was not representing HKPF but was voicing
his own views when he said that the fact that someone had led a group of




Action

-17 -

persons to Yuen Long on 21 July 2019 had resulted in the subsequent
occurrence of attack incidents, while the official stance on the incident was
that the investigation into the incident was still underway.

51. In reply, SCS said that civil servants, when giving views in the
course of work, should be mindful that they must not arouse suspicions as
to whether the principle of maintaining impartiality and political neutrality
was seen to have been compromised when discharging their duties. He
would not comment on the speeches made by individual civil servants on
certain occasions, in particular the case in which he did not have the
transcripts of the relevant remarks. However, he was of the view that civil
servants might voice their personal views by indicating his agreement or
disagreement with the descriptions of a certain incident made by various
parties. Those who were dissatisfied with the performance of the Police
might lodge complaints with HKPF so that the complaints might be
handled by the relevant department head(s).

52. Mr WU Chi-wai considered that when performing duties, civil
servants should not give views that were inconsistent with the official
stance announced by the Government. He also said that in respect of the
incident that happened on 21 July 2019, the Chief Secretary for
Administration ("CS") had remarked that the performance of the Police
Force in the incident might have fallen short of the public's expectations,
but CS' remarks were met with response from President Lam Chi Wai of
the Junior Police Officers' Association ("JPOA") that CS' remarks did not
represent the stance of the Police. He enquired whether such remarks
could be regarded as subordinates offending and condemning their
superiors, as well as why the Administration had issued an open letter to
those civil servants who expressed dissatisfaction with the Government,
claiming that their actions might result in disciplinary punishments.

53.  SCS replied that CS had, on many occasions, said that he had met
and communicated with CP and representatives of the four staff
associations of the Police in relation to the aforesaid incident, reiterating
his unreserved support for the Police's law enforcement work.  If members
of the public were dissatisfied with the Police's performance in handling
individual incidents, a complaints handling mechanism was in place
including lodging complaints with the Complaints Against Police Office.
The open letter was issued to remind all civil servants that as they formed
the backbone of the Government, they should be supportive of the
Government's policies. In case they were arrested for participating in
unlawful activities, they would be subject to disciplinary proceedings,
including subjecting the civil servants concerned to interdiction.



Action

-18 -

54. Noting that those civil servants who were arrested for participating
in unlawful activities might be interdicted, Mr Jeremy TAM asked whether
those civil servants who were arrested by the Police in an indiscriminate
manner would also be interdicted. Regarding a civil servant who refused
to enter into bail after being arrested and not sufficient evidence was
available for the Police to institute prosecutions against him, he also asked
whether such civil servant would also be interdicted, and this question was
related to the handling of his salary payment.

55. In reply, SCS said that allegations of indiscriminate arrests by the
Police must be substantiated by facts. He could not subscribe to the view
that the Government could only sit with its hands folded when someone
was dissatisfied with the law enforcement work of the Police. If police
officers had breached the law, they must be subject to sanctions under the
law. The mechanism of interdicting civil servants aimed to protect the
public's interest, and there was no presumption of guilt in interdiction. If
a civil servant was arrested for allegedly breaching the law, he should not
return to work as normal and continue to exercise the powers and functions
of his office. When a civil servant was still subject to Police
investigations or inquiries for his alleged unlawful acts, he would continue
to be interdicted.

56. At 6:15 pm, the Chairman reminded members that under FCP 43,
members' questions on a proposal must relate directly to the contents of the
agenda item. On wider questions of policy, members should raise them
either in the full Council or at an appropriate LegCo Panel.

57. Mr Dennis KWOK advised that at present, among the 6 000-odd
persons arrested for participating in public events, only about 1 000 had
been officially charged. He asked the Administration why those civil
servants who had not been officially charged had to be immediately
interdicted or removed from office, as well as the basis on which it
assessed whether such a practice was in line with public interest. He also
asked why the Government, on the one hand, immediately issued
statements to express regrets about the statements issued by civil service
bodies which queried the Government, it did not respond to a similar
statement issued by JPOA on the other, and doubted whether the
Government had been adopting double standards.

58. SCS replied that a total of 41 civil servants had been arrested by the
Police for alleged involvement in social incidents in the past six months,
instead of more than 6 000. After carefully balancing public interest and
the gravity of the accusations against these civil servants, 31 in these 41
civil servants had been interdicted. According to the existing mechanism,



Action

-19 -

when a civil servant was subject to Police investigations or inquiries, the
Administration could consider interdicting him.

59. Mr Charles Peter MOK considered that it was unfair for the civil
servants who were interdicted by the Administration upon being arrested
but not being prosecuted, as it was tantamount to passing a judgment before
trial. Mr CHAN Chi-chuen advised that, as far as he knew, an arrested
police officer would receive 50% of his salary upon being charged with a
criminal offence, but the withheld salary would be repaid in full to the
officer after he had been cleared of the alleged offence. He asked whether
the salaries of these 31 civil servants being arrested and interdicted would
be suspended or reduced, and when the withheld salary would be repaid to
the civil servants who had been subject to interdiction. Dr CHIANG
Lai-wan also raised similar enquiries, and asked whether civil servants who
had not been convicted would have his withheld salaries repaid in full, as
well as whether convicted civil servants would be dismissed.

60. SCS replied that interdiction was an administrative measure. A
civil servant would normally have not more than 50% of his salary
withheld upon being charged with a criminal offence. The civil servant
concerned would have his salary withheld in full when he was convicted of
a criminal charge after judicial proceedings. In other words, a civil
servant would receive his full salary after being interdicted and before
being charged. When a civil servant subject to interdiction was cleared of
his criminal offence and no punishment was imposed, any withheld salary
would be repaid in full to him. After a civil servant had been convicted,
the Administration would initiate disciplinary proceedings in which it
would consider and decide whether the civil servant concerned should be
dismissed, having regard to the gravity of the offence and the level of
penalty imposed.

61. Mr WU Chi-wai said that on 11 November 2019, a traffic police
officer drove a motor cycle into a crowd outside MetroPlaza of Kwai Fong,
injuring at least two members of the public. The Police Public Relations
Branch subsequently advised that the traffic police officer concerned had
been suspended from frontline work and arrangement had been made for
the officer concerned to take leave. Shortly after that, CP advised that the
police officer had already resumed his duty. Mr WU asked whether the
Civil Service Bureau grasped and noted the arrangements on suspension
and resumption of duties of police officers. Regarding the public's
impression of the civil service as a whole, he asked whether it was in the
interest of the public for the traffic police officer to resume duty after
driving a motor cycle into a crowd. He also asked whether it was totally
up to the heads of the departments concerned to decide how the misconduct




Action

-20 -

committed by civil servants in respective government departments in the
course of work should be handled, and to determine whether such
misconduct was in line with public interest. He also asked whether the
Civil Service Bureau had the authority to manage the conduct of civil
servants in other departments.

62. SCS replied that he would not comment on individual cases. CP
would determine the handling of misconduct of individual police officers.
In respect of other departments, according to prevailing policy, while
department heads would decide how to handle the misconduct committed
by civil servants working in respective departments, they would consult the
Civil Service Bureau as and when necessary.

63. Mr HUI Chi-fung was concerned that in the recent public events,
some civil servants had been accused of violating the principle of political
neutrality and spreading hate speech. He asked whether it was
inappropriate for civil servants to use unsuitable and offensive remarks to
describe members of the public, and whether the making of such remarks
had run contrary to the principle of political neutrality. He enquired about
the mechanism in place to regulate the behaviour of these civil servants, as
well as whether the Administration would seek to reflect such misconduct
in the pay adjustment for these civil servants.

64.  SCS replied that the remarks used by individual civil servants might
not be satisfactory, and that the Government did not encourage the use of
derogative terms to describe any persons. As to whether some individual
cases were indeed inappropriate and ran against the principle of political
neutrality, a decision could only be made in the light of the details of such
incidents and the specific terms that had been used. If members found
that there were cases involving the use of inappropriate remarks, he would
convey members' concerns to relevant departments. The annual civil
service pay adjustment should be considered as a whole, instead of a tool
for handling issues relating to the conduct of individual civil servants.
Other avenues were available for the Government to handle such cases.

65. Dr CHIANG Lai-wan enquired about the policies or measures
adopted by subvented organizations (including schools, etc.) regarding
subjecting their employees to interdiction, transfer, and salary
deduction/reduction. She asked how the Administration would deal with
the relevant employees in such cases where teachers who were no longer
suitable to teach in schools had to be transferred to other posts, and some
staff members of Radio Television Hong Kong had been publishing
anti-government-policy remarks from time to time.




Action

-21 -

66. SCS replied that staff members of subvented organizations were not
subject to civil service regulations, but teachers of government schools, if
they were employed on civil service terms, were subject to the civil service
regulations generally applicable to civil servants. If there were problems
with the discharging of duties by civil servants in individual government
departments, such cases would be handled and followed up by respective
department heads first.

67.  The meeting ended at 7:00 pm.

Leqgislative Council Secretariat
28 August 2020




B &%

*Thkkhkkhkkkkkhkkhkkhkkhkkhkkhkkhkkhkkhkkhkkkkhkkhkhkkhkkhkkikkhkkhkhkidkkxk

VEEMBERS
ERMLE

H Hi: 20205 1H 10 H(EHEAH)

B B: LF8HISHELRM4H
TH 48504 3E 7H

 Fc MAERAEAEEREL

(MEEENREEZERE (MBZREgERER) £ 19K
SREEEEFEEEBREAMBAT
2019-2020 FE AR B FHM B A F 2T FCR(2019-20)33
HEERAEREENESEBOFHRAR
RENZEFRRAE)

*Thkkhkkhkkkkkhkkhkkhkkhkkhkkhkkhkhkkhkkhkkkkkkkhkhkkikkhkkikkhkkikhkiddkkxk



Appendix

R e e e b b b e b b b b b b b b e b b b b b b o b b b b

Finance Committee of the Legislative Council
Minutes of the meeting
held at Conference Room 1 of the Legislative Council Complex
on Friday, 10 January 2020, from 8:45 am to 10:44 am and
from 4:04 pm to 7:00 pm

(Verbatim Transcript of the proceedings of the Committee in dealing
with members seeking the Committee to summon certain Government
official(s) to attend the relevant meeting(s) to testify and give evidence

in relation to agenda item FCR(2019-20)33 related to 2019-2020 civil
service pay adjustment under paragraph 19 of the Finance Committee

Procedure)

R e e o b b e e R b b e e b e R b b e



EREFRE RERHER T  BRAEE NS HMAKET T -
SR ETHEFELE 10 B 45 of5 R - NP EEFAE 4 KB
THFAG AR - B EIE G ERER& 15 08 -

HERELZE RUEZERS KREREE S R ZESE
flat - R AR (GEREARA) 5 83A RIKRTE - B FEHHE
SHl WEARA SRR FEAFEE (REHAT) 2B 84 &
FRES EZ 8N FRRIHETE -

H A A FCR(2019-20)33 5 3 - i HHFE & B & Lk -
Al 2019-2020 A F E M E - | 20194 4 H 1 HE& -
HNE B R RIFLUT S8« 08 Kl M & T < fon B9 %7 &
W < %A _EER 4.75% (B BB RSBy BRA T AT A BT RS A
AT il 56 (i) B 58 (i) 2R

(i) MR FRFE 34 Bl 74,515 jU 5 MAFFNERE 35 Bl
75,265 7T 5 DA R

(i) —Ma AN B (EEF)FRERSE 20 BAEH A5k
R 36 Bk 74,390 T A E A B (TR FT R R
B 2LEEMIES N Bk R 37 B R 75,135 5L 5 DLK

10 o g R A R 97 < R ) B 7 BE Y < BE B 5.26% 5 AH i 2R
BN TESEWAFTOE ; HERBERM TRELZFIE DA
KA FEFR B R T E R FOE - HARRKREHEFTE LK
ERZAGEFMFENZES AN TIE#E -

Ry ERFNHEE » WMAEREECR R KA EE -

f£ 2019 /£ 12 H I3 HWE#H L - —HZERE (MHFEA
THEREF)R VIR EHEZR SR BLZEGEHAGREE &
MAERBEEHHHFEHE TR FELEEERE ERVBEZES
RAEREMNTEAAREAEHETHEEAEOREZ R T
SMmEM Tz - /£ 2019 £ 12 5 20 HE &R L - EFEEZED
ERREHEREK  KEAFZERHEMITE - WHRD B HHE
REE - RIVMFEE RRBHEEREREHBN IHE TG FHE -

SREGHEYG HILak 6 TH G ZET R RBRER DLk
TE PR IR(E 5 % - WEKAER G Zal e s W EF kg 3 H S - Bl
VLR FCT2/19-20 5730 fF » B B Rt am MR IR L HE -



BAEBH I At am IR AT - WE LR ... AR 3 LR E#H ML

|

(L THE - R #Z#A N E#E)
EFE  BRBUEZEE -

BRAMHERE - £ - AFERE - A FEERER R (R A8
"BLEEE Y RER N ERREIH WY AL LA Y

EFEEAE . FER K -

B
NS

BRAERE - ZEECIEZREH CRYE A 2

G

EFE B RKFFEREHCHYE AL -

PRAERE - &7 ANERHEERZENRT T - PEE -

T WEIE EFXXF - 2 FCT2/19-20 573X » B HF —
REGA FEHIT - WRERE AT ERIEE - AL Al DL AR 2 B
SEHEN EENMEGRREMEENHE - THEoH 2 W AE A
BCE2HMUERERY  ZENHTED E-F» EXARBILEK
BHEEH - AEFIR > RTREERENRETEZIING FEE
&) BXERSRXEESL oA MG Al S8R —T
BEG N EMXFBER@EEHBEREMN » REEE
NE— B EZERNEEEE T 0 R

R EL RERBEERRA. CRIMBAREAT B
REHERE - WERIKGRE - AHEECHTE -

Wl A PR B 5 B AR B B0 B i R - T R4S FAM 3R AE 22 5E G L e
e T HIEREMRERGERE - WMHEEAEE - &,
MrEEE  WMREEAMEAZE  KME@ A DIEEET - J
ERABATEREANMEECS T ENE D - RE T LUGE AR GREE -

-2



HREHERZEENER » WAEBFRIMES......

KENEHmE - HAERMNE -

EE 2

p=qiii
anfi
5

R

@L_E:

fill 5% £

il
puUiN
ol
e
S

EH AL

Ke\BBE - ETEEZRNUE R F R H 3 H 89S Ay sl 5 5
REF - WEFBEFME - REBERERF - (R ZREAH
Ry e R X » fERFRILERF - HEREZKBERA @A
1 - DIECE B R IR AT A LNE » WRAR & ILFRRE T
EEGBFHEER  ZRALERAHRR - E2H 8 -

R HAEAE - IRRUE R’ R IF R Rk
etk Xy - (5% A Bl C B2 —KEIERMB AT EGH -
frEer LLEaR » SEAWGEBMGZECRFER? AL
frit A~B~C-DE FE6{HTEMENKRAF - EHM
ERRMERREN » (7 Far ZEL)ERE - N AFEDE~F- (12
EIRAZ MR AP - (HHERGZE A B C AlE#H R
XFRIPEFRERMERR - BEEE......

R AGFERERE - TER - BrIER M E -

ME: ZHER - MRROXF - WRE -HEHWHEE - @
G A RERERRAF - PIATREIERTS » #E—H
EXEHOEBIESR  FREZBEEME LHRXVLE - BlL
i text BUSLRR RF KR o £ A H A8 FH M € I i - R
AEHERRKRERROGZHE - R —ANTELAR > MEG
EFEAEEAREZRAGUEE - L RECHBAERRNE L
Z& Y Ry P R B E ST R KR 1Y -

(K7 B G L ER - FRTTFEA B C o BT =
TLIER)



R ORIYMGEE S FEA B CEME - WHEHTEA BC
— R e AR A 3 {E ST EARFE ...

(K F] 24 % A i 18 1 7 L 55 B 37 57)

ERE A2 REEER > RULMEE - (RS T - HR
ZA B CHEZEFEREA » imEREBRERRZRHKE - X
FPRE2ER—FERRE T » BIREEKHE  dFZFRA-BEEL
PR iZE ABCe il RARNERFIER » g0 7 H Al
HZE - BGBERBRFIRHTGE - ARG E E IR A HE - %
RBEMEOES  —m@ERBRERRN X R - KNG EXE
FIFARZ » ANl WA - IR IEE TE 8 MR TR
ZR M WG LLEmEE R - (RAHEL -

BAEHE AR RE - 5o RUMER S IR 8 IREy 5 =
B PR W 9 i

(FZ A& LEEH)

ERE 2 REHER -

AERERE IR SEREEN - RBEETE VAR IR E R
ARISTHE 0 38 6 7 =2 AL AR o BT PL - RIERAYSE
RARFFEG BRI FZHAES - & EI0E & AR =8 E
hz o HEpn e ERE TR BREGEmE - PEY
etk Xy EGRAE -

ER o RES  RAEN. . EREEETHE AVB-C
&3 EHEEES - (R IR B R R - (7 K TR
R IR B (R B SRR AR S
E L EERETE A EEFERAREARIEIHG - REEER
[+ TEE (R MR R - (R EL o — R R AR PR R R - (HE
SRR BER - R 2 R K T LRS- 55— 8 75 5 82
%o SHRER.. - FEAER AL A B CIERR » KX
7 B 5 05 FE O A TR W S B (R - (AR )
ERHHME S TR AL -



ERE ) - WBEERAMEER - A IATEKA S
o T AE AU R B R o BT DL AR B - S R A L o A IS Y
EGEL AR TIERE -

ROV E - FFIRT IR ZE -

Iy

(7 5 & 7 A 7 B 12 H 2 [

e

ERE B ATEEEE -

AEEEE  FIREEBERE MR REME 6 %
Meid e Al WEEH - FRIEHTHEEAENERZE » ERE
GEHREEERNZEE AN MEEHE 6 HTRAS ... HE
R AR E - WEANERFER - HIREHL ERILE - §5)
EMABEREHTEEGE  EEEGHEEEENER - 1
R W > AN ER - A PR AE 6l 5% - A " EE R
EEEREEEAHEL - BB ERIEREER LT
fEE AR - ER A EE - NBELERTEL - HHEM
R T E R AR EEEEFY  EREEHILE - H
o B HEEEEENORER - EXERERLSRERERE
MABGHEEEN  EEMZEGHAN B2 RFAAE
Kf (77 07 i 22 20) B AT B I & am PR A 5 8 5 U2 AT (i » HE1E
(MBZEggRER) F 3TRIFAHR.....

ERE i (REYRFIRE T ...

HEEMA  EBERRE...

EF (R EMERS  REREMEHRT - (R E RS -

AEEER  EW...



EFE : REEMARSE -

HEEHE . EREFRT FB 2 AFEEELE

EFE : REEM#RSE -

ATEEER g BT My » R

TR ORRE RM - CEREE . S E TSR EEAN.....

I3

AEERE  WEREHLTENEZE  ErEHREIE
SN 2

B

/.

TR R AR IRRRRE

HAEERR  RE(MBZEGERRESF) B 3TER - RIREZ
B ANREHIREN - (EREHAA) 2 29 2 35 - AIEKXR
gRHOBENVER  THEHARMEZE - BMREERER » KK
M5 37 BRITHE - IR AREWEFTE? £ L RNWER
b EwmERE > ENIREGEEBNERAME - RAiE Lk
HEZ—?2 BAANTI RS H/AMHE? FE - RIFBE
AREAREE BIEZETHRER - G258 — -

FH o EXMRAEMEBEERE R AxE A BERKEYE
HAERNGELHES  BREREESMEHNEZR  REFERE
HZ S 37TA BRI ERR M - EH BRI GTE A Rill - H'E
EERWEEAEFE  WHERECKLEFmESH  EARE
e Y TH S B - FrABRfEH — 8 - el e bt F e 7 — &4
BRI - (REFE - EEEEF L A EREEERBR T
THEEGMER AR HEERGHATLAIEEEREL - 74
HESEALITHE - IREMGENEFE L AAEERRE » I8
(RN EZEHSIEE 3TA RN AE - BIHZE A IIR(REERE
HAxE A ILHBERRRR > WEREZREL - (FFE T A
FRABIIA SR - RO g NE BE - 2 B RE TR A T B B RS
MEE - ATDL - WMERERERE » EERN T » HIREEGE R

6



FREAR PR B E MR - g e r s am Al 6 B 5= - (HiKk
HERDVERLBEEMETEHZE -

ERE A EEE  ELRERE RMCEEBERZ/NER R
B - AR R ANTEWM G 2 RAEERD -
R A v H AR - BT e LLE | S E IR o AR IR R AT
Ry NIEHE » BCENEERE - R EEMREmR - B4 g
ERRTER T BRGEREEEME IR MEECKS
RIEERE - MR AR B AEW - WRERELIFIEMA - 55—
i e#EREES » FIFEBRIRGZE 505

FEREBR B ZHEFE - -EFE > HEREAWHESE A
REE AR ERERERBERBENVER - 2 (EARZE) A
MER - HILEENBREHLHEHERZSE kI FRYBER
ZAHh o B HAMEE - Pl R E R H MBI - A
REXOANBETTEFNRERR  EREGRRSE..... 88X
el DU~ A WA RERMAERE - Tl - TEXRE
ok P BT 5 20 AR Z B g R R EH — @A - i
L adopt - HEEREARR THE - il - BERIEAZHXM
TE > TNRR B EZ e HE(H M E - WEETHE—T - B
RUAE TFESE 4 (65 B2 5 KE H RSB S ATE - BT A
EMERETEFTREN - ZH L -

ERE i T UEBRIMEE  FBIRTHEMBGE -

KENBEE - D LR - B TEIRERTRRLZE - HE
£ RAVERE » RAIEHRAGE E- AREF L HE B HE
HEEH MARBLTEBI BT GREMEHRER S
e (EARER) ~ (LEGEEDREERE) ~ (EFEMR
) M B EEggRER) BT ARRNWET  EX8EFR
HEFERFEINEFE  #rlllEHEARE > IEREED
FEOLE e R E s - LR HREE -

MRREEEFHNE HEAGRHEEGER SR
Bt ? el B+ 2EENER  BEEHE.....
EHRE N RR MM IEEE B ESR . WMEE
AR Emmn T - IFBRETEMMATAIEMR - Tl A BB kR i

-7 -



RATREH 2R - B - WIEHW AR B HEZ22RET (M
BEREGGTHERBERF) B 21 BME 29 HEHEEHINESE

BENREZZEFEERONESE  AMEZKR (MBEZET
GEP) BT HMAENHESIHEEEL R EEET
EMEAEREFMUREEEHEG AN LR - 2YHBEEG A LD
M MR EREERSR - A EREENS &5 FEZNHE
® (77 0F a5 Z )

ERE - P UEREHEE

RBHERE - A EFE HELCEME T ... IS iE H AR
o ERE o WMBEENTEA FEB FECH  HEHEC
WABHE TECEZNE - FECHELEZ EFFERERMK
AT HAR G > M58 R E g st a0 m 28 - T E
CELEEEHEERL - BIHEEHNGR -

FRLL - EFERIRAERTFEA-B-C- D E- FIEBRIEHAK -
HEEAMHEEN EE2LTENEXARE - WEHEICERH T
= C  BIHEWRZGEHE BEM IR » BMBEAENEE
THE MEF > RREEZREMEEH - S22 BRANEE - A
REMENR A C IR » MR B A ZEH - IMZEL
ERNARE - AEERETE - SR B B2 AT = ET R
EHRER - £ WMEXREEMEEEM S  WANER M5
R FEFH A AR EERXA R AL & - RAZE
HRER S EFE

EFE AR EFEER - HI5 7

PREBHERE  E R ir IR E ? RIRANILEE - KB R
BReKataw BRI EWELBLE - frE NBAREE - 1
o EH TR BEREARAGERERE SRHNGE » IR
EGHBEERIER

EE:-WHE WH HE - REEFERE > TREESHERE -
HERFTH B EEHAEME - N8 WOIEAROER - T8



HARE - TPl (RAFEBER T - BIRTEIRN AR o (74
7 22 i)

RB#EERE - LF > NE"SRES . BERE"?

ERE - BEH T BERBADIERE - MRREH - WIESRE
REFEEFAE  ERERESM  HE?ARMEACFRE - HE
W ERE LR MR TIRA - ARHGERARZE..... Rl
# T HEREEAZEAHEE - AR AR R AL
Hom] DU 2 oy E R B R AR - E R ERE - B ZAEH R
Eoo2gmi DR pE > WIREHBFEHRE - SE&RA
®RE - WREWHGHRME - WAREIRVER » BHAEFIREME
ELRET - S HENETR WO HE - FERBHEE T M
E

REHEZRE 0 £F o MARHEROE - WAENAIE - KT
ERME . REEAWHE -

R - FA

RHEMERE c G ETOME RBREHOTTE > EHH
[E Ry 1H H FCR(2019-20)33 f fE:1& Y Wf 5 A 5% - 1Mo 7H & B2 2
DIRHER - EREHEGE B RZEL - ECFEEHEEH 2 &K
oy T e o ik R EHIRE - WRBAEZIRG - ERERD
R W AEHEREEZHEEATLL - EREATFERKR
BEgEESTEE HARGEFELEREGHRE - G EHE
EZE? KRRl - Z2REw M ERLZHE  KERTGTE B
el HIEEERRE - MEREG Lk F—F#EEH
THEaFPHAENEREETGH AR AEE - RREER
Z o Ftamfs T mE > W EEZ A LIA 15 08 o ERERN
EEGTEEBRHFRHEHNEE  WARKERETTE B —f -
BREMAENESHAE  MWEFRF AR NG & EHE
#5019 EERE o WHRF AR T REETHRERMNKXRIEH
FCR(2019-20)33(5/ /a5 2L -



ER R MER.. WMLUZERRMAETERES ? FtE
Ht o FHIZHL

i

g

(KA M7 A7 ERE)

EFE ORIEEE ...

KREVEERE - B ERE - LK MRMMEEREGE B 4 EH
Hie HByas - Rl S Eia TR o # - BEI T T E EWE Y

ERE: SEE?

RENE RS - WA T W o g IR R Ak U7 % B RIS 268 21 B
A pd BLE (E ) RE - BRI Y -

RN I - BRI LH -  WMELZEERILES
fREL AR

&

Kel@EJmE - KL A TEE EFE -

EE R R IFHY -

KENEFHME - R 2T H T % B HEH BN R E B # &R =
SEHA-E"KEE"GE - flR g RE S - g
FABHERE  FEHE# M item - WEBEFEHZRE
—{E A BUAGIEEL | item BN HFEZEG A - M2 A E item
emAFREAE WA -l REFHEREHK G D -
B2 A — - AT M REZEWNTE A T -5 Z &R
E"NHE AR EgEREFREE —HEE - AlE—EfFE
NP FRERIMHEB A

BRIt Mie H T % B g2 - AR IREER M FERR
Je TEMEEFABENFHEREEE R M.

-10 -



e — XMz R SR Z Pk ﬁﬁik ﬁﬁﬁ’l
REREL #HEREEEMGE D —HERE @ﬁﬂk
— ... 2B XNGHEZHIAMBEUNTERES ;ﬁﬁjﬁﬁm » H
EMamol A 21 B~ 55 29 EraE 37A By » HE (R A LU
— LR P L Al DAER - "HRMEEEE R E 2 A AT E R
EE R WM PR R G — K RE A GRS 37TA BG&
Z" o EE  IRE - ZGEMTAT  "FTEME" - B A e
A R AR A G g AR B R E T T A U R R '
T WG EE - LU st B R B T % D RFHIETHY -

AL - FHR MR - 2R T B EIESAE E 20T - (7 Far
HUTHTERRLFAEB - MIRATEEZESTZEBZHE - ALK
ZHHARLRARE MESFELGEB - WEAEBAZ2HE

ERE o WREREE - 55K comment — A 6 5 -5 4
5 o

SEHER ... T BEaHE  sE MR —EKE -
EHEREVZIEHEAEE  HEEHERHGHD » I,
TNHE® HEEAR RMEZEINERSETER - EX
— e RAERMEETEE...JHEALRKMEE —FHEFENETF
%%%%%aﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁkkﬁ%’&ﬁ%% EZRERF - R
&0 EIZEIE EHEEFEERERHRS X > BE2F% 10
FIWg 2R3 - IMELES » EEFEREHIET T —HEHHA » MEZEHA
IR AR HEHRS XY HEEXRMEEZEEZ RS LK
Mo R ’fﬁﬂﬁzﬁ'ﬁﬁ%%%ﬁﬁﬂéé#ﬁ’?ﬂﬂ%%ﬁ%ﬁ
o8 THHMANE R — SR FEEERERE - A
EEMIE R B —HHE T —MERRMEEENRER » Bl
FEREBEMEH  HEEFENRGHIG 7 —LERAH - KBS
MAERERB —REZEET  KFXFERGES  NITBEENESE
EAEEZT  EBFEDNKNHEE -

FH o WG RE MR RAEKE *ﬂ%@%ﬁﬁ#ﬁ%%
e &ﬂkﬁﬁhALﬁééﬁ EHRMERBHEMES S
FhREEE - S AEMIEHBGE H R ATE HH R EZ BRI -

FH= WRE REGNAE . HEWDER UL EFR
%’%% MERFE—EHEHEHWS - eGBE M ET 2 LEF L

-11 -



TEAIKES  ERFEEEBUTHMEE  MEAgHE G &
HEEALEKEE AGHE OK?HITEZ2HFEREN - 2lREA
NHE R 35BN AT REHY » AR Joy A) MR i 2 A 2L (A
e 2 MAJEEER - Wb @ RE g - EEEENEIEHE 8 & B 6 E
AN Bl R o FREUR - BiEE — 2K - AIie 2 8RE -
£ — R HEMEEEwE > REZEMEE IR > ZEEIR
ERHR "RIFA S EREZAEERR Y AERMAGEN G
ERABEE - ELZEFK - MG AMEEELRENER - IR
ERRERT » FEEFREAT > NHEMEER -

ERERET -ERF ALEZERE > EfwmAEEEE
- Al — PR ot B EFHFE - aiEE BERZFWH
ARE R — [ B EE E R EESRH R S XEE AR - EAR
w1 E - AT DAL AI B R A R E AL IR AR BE AT DL - 2
frat » AIREMAELABEFRRE - A EE - BUFANRBREGE
ZRmaHn A ERERMAR - TREERZLEAAK -
Ptk ERXGHE LB RN REHE & B
Ko BEEEZNEFZLEERIAK » 554 2 —# Frg8 deadlock -
OK 7 Bl ¥ o F — L3R B ZOR K (B B BT 2K 2 5 deadlock » A"
FHRECHEGE -

FDL - S5 EHE > JMA LIRS - BH A RE1EE & 10
M- ZREHHE LB - HEWEEHMS - WASHEER
HERMOEKH nER. ... BT REF(EE Errdk - (HEAEA[E
BHE L. CHEEC AR - ARG T IR A &L e 5 X
o BT RS B L B 5 i i - 1T B B AN R T S g B
RAIKMEE  -MEAAEMS - WRBEREEST - AR ELE
Fd gk o BIEREMAE > SgELBEME ARG e - &
{45 5 B B e e R A AR | & e 2 (Hg - MAE 2R R ER A
fF EFREERHFENEAGHEHNZEDHCETR » ATl
S th Fi7 2R B B AR B S B R Y L AE - 1A — R ETE DL o P
LL o WRATE (77 #F a5 ). AE B -

ERE:RHERE AG-XMNE - A5 —X -

fﬁuu
K]
W
B
#=

SEREE LN REGBMEEZMEGE > A
A & 8 ] ge RS — Ke 7

-12 -



EF MG CREHEE B FE EFEREERRTE
EHEEXHERACHSE > FOEAR S XIME - (R46 1 W57 883K

PEE......
(FFEEH#FE AR LEEHG)

ERE o GEEMER?LEH... . MEEEN > FIFE
BEE"EAEHEE"......

(2 i1 8 A il 18 1 7 L 55 B 77 57)

EFE: .. HEESRFABER..... N ARCA &
iR TR RABEARSXME -

(7 7 1 % A e 18 1 7 L 15 B 3 5T)

EFEMAOEHTEEMFE WO R/MERTE AB Ceo (K
HETE EMF....

(7 7 1 % A e 18 1 7 L 15 B 3 5T)

EE ;... B EF F....

(2 i 8 A il 18 1 7 L 55 B 77 57)

EFE AR REEER  WEEBBMMAROUAE -
(2 i 8 A il 18 1 17 L 55 B 77 57)

EFE Y ANEATR..

- 13 -



(2 i1 8 A il 18 1 7 L 55 B 77 57)

TR REHHE  FORK BERMEECIYH . BSHE
By 5538 - FTDL......

(2 i 8 A il 18 1 7 L 55 B 7 57)

R BER WERER > H—EEZFEHRE  HEE S
# e E 0 AR J M AN e ﬁ%“ﬁ%&@$§§’%%?
AL Jf—E%E......

(7 7 i % A e 18 1 7 L 15 B 3 5T)

EREARNAE - ARBERE A AEEEHEHNAETMNE
HENIES - KMEBEBEEZ PR FEES - READEZ T 3%
S CBRBRERGALREVEFFRRE - SFAEETHE
wit - WMEEFZVREEES -

2P ERFMAERES Y NEHER > MREIZRAYFEF -
AR T 8= %t - WMAERKLHE 11 ZFEE - BiRAE W

(27 7 H i A 775 B 18 H % FE [

R i

AEHEE  AMAESHEBG - FmiEd i RIFpER ik
EM MRAZE  REFEEIET eSS EH MR NERFXR
i - B A e 3% E Sor# - HIRAReE 2 "B HMEHFAAE
54321 WEEKHET -

- 14 -



ERE - REREE  RIER Ao EHRERERE  XHFITREH

FREZ.....

FEREE  EAMERE  WEZKE-ERENER - &
BIESERM......

AREHEE HZERE?

EFERBEHRE MARLIEARFHME - WHE KRR —EG"#
R MBAGZEGBER &K  KEBH -ZHM - K

o
s

SEREE  MEBEZERERS W F2FRILERE
BERE 7

EE RRAB/AFTE -

AEREE C ARARE VBN

R AZ - REFERBHREM - TARA.....

AEFBE I ERBEAEREMNNME MEa M GHAME |

R REHEE > KEFHRE - FEHEH 5 o# - TR
KR IR AEE R Al - FREZRAR ...

AEREE N2 RREMIRERFEMRE -

EFE REERET » HKEEHFE......

- 15 -



L IR SIS BT .

SEREE  FHEEg R AR ERmE

ERE AR BRFEERK > REHRTFRARE  RREEE
BZPVEEHST  HER NI LUREERES - KEFFFHF > LE
- B 8 11 A2 - AR 114 > odm EHAM T LU
I EAREF R o EE BT o bR T IRAE LR MM &R 2K %
RELMORIEI - WMEFERTZOERE - WREBERD

(2 i % B 15 75 L 5 B il 7))

IR ARTERFNERAMBETES - BEBRRE - K%
BE -

HERES - % WRMROCHRAEMEFEHER  HEET
JEZHEHEER - M@ A REHREERBENEL RN E
ML TME  F— HEEHEFEEZNREWER  —&%
#h b » 2 HATEE substantive WY EfEFiam - 5= > HELHE
CERE » IRHEGEm U N EREME TR TFEE
B SEVWIE -EEE  NHREREERBEREDSE

H— 55w o BN REGRER T BHERE

R FHy - MEZEEE -

AEZZE  £F KU BEHEMNE  HEEKERTR
T M AT EmE R eSS AT o ERIF TR E e KB
AR ?"ESE SR AR - HIE " WRIRE
A JE 2 R [ - WL HE S — 20 FEM A RE e H - A2 A

- 16 -



BARAT DR HIE 2 ATDL - BEERAIRZRFEE - R0 Z 5 XE IR
PEETE . B ENRASKEBEEER FEEEXECE2HE LR
{35 5 W W At > > R IR T o EAO BN R AT - BRI Y
OK -~ % -

EFE OK- IE....GF#R > REHEE -

AEREE  HREARE A IRAER TR 8RS T W
mEE Ky - REEH > HES 6 5% & TARERHMEA
FHE . HWOWmES - XESHK > FEEERE AP H—
ARG AMEE/REERSHAFEENBRERERE - W
EefRead OHEKG#HS  HAEGF 5423221 2R
e HE MRMEAZRENRBESEH  LOHERZEEMS
FHEEE-AME > FRIOOEG T HmE SRS - REAm
BEX—m#Es  FMEEERMAZHNES  t—EEHFER
®RH -

ERE - FH o REAKRE > HEEIFER - EKTE - FR
A AR B REFMNEN > EEMEE - RNERES—
i » REEFHAIERE 8 FRAEME M BeE
NHVE (571 25 ZPE0) » IR AT DL 28 3 70 88 - (HEEE o Ho
FlREMTFARS S o NEENVEETEES -

(F# AL LEEHG  BEERIA G F#ZH#ZA L EEZ
# 5 IF I

AEREE LR FHEER - AN AREIE B Y -

IR AR SUAE  AFESBHTHERVRL - AR
Hi \FBEF 2 3 4 SHBSHE - FLARREERE
B - FER BRI -

(F 2 ik B 1E 5 LA B 78w [EZRE A i 5% )

17 -



£
ER -

£ 0>

SEEHEE LW
ZHZmES

PUREEHRRE

s cEFEIKES -

—A{ >
HihZ EhER R 5 78
°\]//:J‘\<§%EEH?EE ’ uﬁgxm °

ERSRMEEE HREERE

==
BB B e

EFE AR BRMEKBREE " EALMRAE 2 L
A N2 508 P26 7o WAEFES i o RMIE
Bl 2E bk - WO BB AE - KRR MBS B8 KB R
R WHEHK....

ﬁ%$%§rfﬁ
T

—~

ERE  HEFEEE - WA R RAyAR -
% RBEZ A 3 78 o

AEHEmE
TR A
AEMEmE
R FH -

L A ANE

et A TR RE m%ﬁ\,ﬁ%:m
ERFSRE > KRAR/TELLD

|

JQuy
Juy,

)

IREHEE -
ﬁ—'ﬂnﬁ@nﬁ Tnﬁ?jﬁiJT—fﬁ °

EFE o KRR BMEHREREL ERE - RER -

fif |

- 18 -

YR E B R IE
o ZRERBEVFEHMEEMEENERL KA TE2REIRY
HREH - IFE 10 # S -
A2 RERES 3 o8 MIRAE - i
BEIREHBERES
GRNBHEAD

{HIR I AE A o] DB B -
o7 & reset
AL Ry e A1

HAEEEEMEENER  ROYHER R E



AEERE  LF > MRKMTWAVE 6 HAOXEMLEED
B RNETEHRNMERE - WENRTER - FE HJia
TEAN S o WEGEELHER - FE2REHEEFRK
SCHE ot (I8l B fa fth B8 28 g ] - ARAS K G20 AN 49 s T8 & & o

fRE Ml 72 2] - SO ERA B0 — XM FUE A RE —
R?2EAE - HMHwHOE  EHREXERDESE  EBAM
BESLHIRE B2 ER T AR E AT EANEME - BIRIMERE
e YA B R A PR TE R - AR
oE P IRARMEER » AR H R EBFEZNHIE - (KA
HEEGE MY WRAE > WMA 5 o8 6 258 B 3L — {#
FEHY T A 7

TR AEERE  EREEXH FEA B CHDEZE

-
FUBFHRGE — R
AEEER  LF - ERUBSHR -

ERE: Sz EEEAREHRERNMBER - T FBE
AREE RERNER  SEEK -

AEERE M EGE®R AR K- FEGEHEE

B
EFE R ERET > WARMRBRAZELAEA B CE

AEERE  FESHEE MEE - EFERESFEFR  £F
APETERWERA -

EF : FBIREER

AAEEEE  EMERE G

-19 -



EFE - EER > EER -

ATEEEE Ll JFE 6 HARERZ - (R 2R
R ARt - FELGERIRANEAE » RA@#iE—XU
(M - FELSEAEARB®REZWNAMEH - frll - 5E24
e P A LA R IMEAER 6 #ITE - HE MR
WAl e AT B A - B RIERZE 8 - BEORAER GwE X
o EE  HEBESERRIIKERESE GEMHXTES > B
OT BN LAyl - ER L E R MAEEREZE L afawm—& » 2
ANERZ?MH > EEH ...

R ER#S S EATE -

AAEERE  NEESR - E 6 HARTAELE - HE2E
HEaf s n ok - S8 ARE RN REGTRERE
Wy - BRERAE —BE W WERMERLE®R ? AEHERE -

FTLL B BRGE (8 D - R (] & Bofe 2 B Gy R - A
cHERHEBEWERE  HEAFE?"HIGRES - FEAG®HD
HE . REEE? REENE - EFEIRE 2088 ER
GE - BREE - e N ERE - et - & & & A
HERBOEKRAREEN LS » R 5 AFEEHE - A
HEmHNEGHEEMME - -2/ &5 6 XL EMENTS
= FEERHE  FEEHRIKEH -

Bl —FAER KRN ERA(M B2 Eg & EF)
FHINECHRARGEREESHBIEENGZE KA AT ?
HEARE £ E—-XREg®E > BEER - S LA R
HA#EELERE R A LEHE @GR ? B FE
EREZHR(MBELZEFgRETF) B 37 KRG ZE - E#HE T
BHBRKMOMZEEGRE - WREETEHIETEIEE
frXsEzrARHE - (KGN EER » ERAE 2 HEK
F RIS A - Ry A E LY

B B (RB G SRR R T A EE B
HUHRERRREA  BRER  BRMAR TEEA 3
6 % CEEREERNSCETEOER  BFRE —
s 51 534 R 7 2 75 5 % RS 0 A R > B 9% 79 0 B 25 @ 3

- 20 -

=

il



AR SR WE 2 AR — B - & 2R AEE — 4% BUF "8 " X
fbr REBEHREERAIK WMOELZZEOAHF® > B
A E TS I0FET 0 HEERR - FrlL - IWBE - EFEIREE FERFHE -
enWERBRAG - KE TEEZL /N RS BHEH
it WM A B wmdlmE G - ffamE 6 Box > KA T
Vi 2 ZEA RN BT - RERMEHENEE - ZHEAE
WA TFEEE LR HE - AR IR KA BERE
amaE L SR ERBEEL  FESHEE? RAGEER R
et BEBEPUERI A ARBANIREH T - HAEEHE
HERMATRER  RERRELZREMNR  ZH XA mAHE A
FATEE » NGB T RAKRENR 2 (RERIE - itk 15 W E G
EEICHES -

ERE T FRAEGEESRT  H..

AEERR T2 WEAAENM - mEMmER -

TR FEEERE  BEENEZZHEHEmEMUER.....

AEERE  WBEAECNEUHM2E - REMBELRNE  BTD

EE . PR (=5 K 1 VARS8 = OO

HEESEE . EHRERAIK . ERMEH -

R ... H O (FA A 85 2E)..... 58 2 | Mg ny i

AEEEE  (rEMR BHEES....

EFE: .. WERER » REHMEFE......

=21 -



HEEEE . ECEBRERENR  ERMED - RERA
M ERE -

xR £ i

b

BER - AFEBER......

3
o

AEEEE  JWEEMmE - EFE - B —HIFH -

I

I

il

R RESEE > RETES

pugly

/

REZB/E LR Hh BERHETHEH - —EELE - L
A DU R AR B — B > g v DOE BS - B EEEERE
BERE  FAME 578 > 5598 -

FopE. . BBRRKECAANER » HER
BRAIREERERMAEEARERATE  ERAKEE
HEEFE et ZEARLEEE  NRFEERA
R WA N EERE > WEGKEW - MREER » &M
NBEAERG —HAM FE - RRERASPSE - AR —Z1
HIEEHR A HEGRE - Aliegss 10 2 EFHR LXK -

B2 HMEEAR (MHEZXEGGRER) F 19K KH
CREESERER > ETHW  "ZEGETHEBER - WEFH
e "MAEFEE-MEEE BEEERACKEZAY - i
LA A A mTRER » THZ E G RIRIE » I E K2 70 /i (A step - 32
& — il step- FEEHE — 2 EFFRVEGERE KM E2EE
HHY -

an

d 0 9w
I M H
2 H
B 3 S0

EEHAR R ATELET  BERREMEZEG TFEETH
Tl AR ERINGHEWNER % - ZERESGH - EHE
GH?TER AMELBEBEZERZSZEN  EZ2ENE
Wednesbury - @ G EH SH %R 2 &% - WWRMMEL AED
FE IR BELEE - HE2EKZKE O HAE - 2 — bl
HEERHGHEIRgHRNGEERE- W hEESE - E2R"E
TR WEFRE" - ETFERNERENREE  HE%EEa
RLExEp » HF—EFREFEM - EREESEIKRED > T
Y f#% narrow discretion ; & SL ) [EREERE - 0l % wide discretion -

=22 .



MEERREEBERFRLIEN  WEHE - XWFREMD -
NEBETRAEHRHE  EEEERLT I -ERZEFZEZIRE
2 DIRER - WRBFABLETY - ATDL - i 2 00 728 (8 SE (R
E e T 5 m#EWF o W Zdwmthiy o HE R MR R N E
REIGE - TPl B EFREFRREN S "#E BEHR A
A MANEF SRR RAMSSE - A rlsER —E A K&
HOKRE B REtZaafh 3 58 - KEHE 5 /78 - Al ke
ZHANH - (RIS BREIRTEAE - Tea 3/~ 6 /NF
RPN

BHE HEKRMESEGEEEME 17 8208 809 0% 2 &
e 2 FH S E W ... ... HME % - FIRZ /&R R LT
r o ABEWMAERZEE - WHC N E E BT 8 H — (E
guideline » #5585 TH £ 5% 1~ 2 21 ¥ E 5] & %5 & - G5 IR & A 2 2 ¥
EplEE - mERE - MREEE.....AF B8RS F1
DHEBERMEEZFEREQRE 17 &L 5 &0 & E 0
8 REEMMTEE. . AP - M W E EH R B
—HHER  E-EReREEEEINY WA REELEH -
AR ZE - BE— 20 -

HE ARy ERLCSR-FENE LS SRR G
BAGHLr ? WBRGEMEREH » AR A #E2Z - WEDF
ERBREHERMAER  IARBERE - (REEH 19 - 7
i BEAHEFEEREARNES KMk g&#E S EO
BiE - HE H 19 RREGERER » KfrE@2.. ATEEkEC
TREZL > JSEHFBE > PERMREEERHEEE 19 B (K
ARG HRM.. BB RAARHALSNNTERE - REGE#EE
1 i Fe A E T R G R R -

N EEERE > ERER - A& RE 3TA B Hl—
e HI L - H2ECRG 2N 7 & refer to HAhl - FIRE Z R
FE S SAXAB-RE - HREEMEES » —EZEEE A
s s {65 19 B » AR i BHHE R » WiE — R E RE — A
EIERTE = (Ff #F iy Z )

ERE 0 BEEBEE -

- 23 -



EEREE - EF - WAl Rl OB ERESHERTTREE
—& 5 o EREEE - H2 o B8 5 o A AERIR
e X RFWRE S5V ER | AR AR 19 B A IS RS T
HR &M > AT EZRBEAGR  RRPE V9ERESF
ifwe 2 £ - WARGE - BRFEF S ERBREZFME - KA
B B I9KRR"WAEFE" FERREAmESATE
FTEEREREESAFRE  -HAEGE M KREFELE -

PPEEE LW A EE T -MERAENNTAWHE - #HERE
BieHGZE > REE"EREGRWERM AR ZEGTH
TRERCHFETHEEGHE"  REFREFEAEEZEA - A
EARXWHGEMER - EFE - WRg ZT0EEFEE - BERMAE
s A{RTSE A1 B A O S B B A - S R 2 MR Y
HMAA LT w - WEEBEE - WM AR - WMATEER
HEEAE - B S HEMBE DV Y EK - BE & KBS
el R - TE A S S re sy e - KB AR IR 2 RBRE B
NE » R mE HEEE T EFEE A - (R E % 8 i
ER —EREZERESHEFEES - A AT &RAA&E
HERESHEENEEREENEHIE? BIREWN - G224 T2
fElme ek ? Frll - £ RBREHEEEMHE > #H L
AR E AR E R B

B MRS RXEAME & T BRI 19 BB AT E R
R = - 75 HIl T8 A & {005 2 I R AL B IR R R 5T am > 2106 2
Ryl M B RS RAC TEEZRHE O~ BIHE amEE 19 BRI
i F R A (s A - (B3RP SRR — G (R R B Y R D e R AT
ol R 2 19 R AR & UM T - RS A A AT ER TR o RF 2 R B
g Je Bl - O A LAE e B el R0 7 5 I AR 2 R R B9 fE
o A HEMEER LB FEARS X ELZHE T VERES

2 IR R FOE AR S X BE ] g —E 5t
B 35 5 B e AT G R AR R g 5[ si 2 - Fr DA
T BHNFAERBZEHR - BT H -8 HEFE =
e ST ER . ERBREBEABIMNE Sy a3t
REBAEFEZR T 5 XIESEGEHRER &A1 KEZERKZE B
B 19 B - S5 A 2RI -

MERBEZEXEESHHM 5 ELAAKEELRAFY BT —
(HZEx - mMiELEHMABannsy - (FRRENENER - G

- 24 -



BEAHN  BRREZBEEREDERY EGEZEERR
H o BEoHER  BEREFREERSE - BTk R
LI EF R E - MIRE R E BLENE - REHBHEE AT &
GALEBEZERE > 2R T mMEFRE  EMEAELE
B mEENR &L -

Frll PR ZR AN A 2R PR EREHAERE - oEE R
BT B—BRENRE  RETEEHERmHEZD -
bl EEMEREZEXAMEEDR  E6FROEENZEM -
NEEk2EE MR - FEERE ZN ARG - WRR
£ R FRBEREIE S - ERERAEEE AR XI0E
FIEZHERR RAEEHRRERAIK » E - £ - AR
Rf B S JHAE K2 5]~ DR R R 19 BRNEE L E =T -

Al B S Fr AR HL Al 38 B BOR b AR B Ry T 5 W (E U S B
WH%E - 2EZESFEN o (7 FsE L)

EE  REHEFES > 50 -

PREBMEE - TF PR AEN@Y > B EgER - HEE
BUF RIS S (E M 2 g —H & 7 3t &% BUF #30E B 89— (8 1
EEENEZEY o M nl S E A A E 5 — LB 8
AR EEE N EREE (REARA) RETH - 20 i
ERAESE  (MBZEFFRERF) B 17 BFIH - EFK
ZEgHHFEEAEE  NEERHE A RAIIEBUT E i sl
mEI BB RS » MR EgiefELEMN  BEHERE -

A0SR P M 5 RS LI FCE H R > BUS & M B EGE RTZK
HERARMAE S 19 B - (H2 » B AE S (# BURF IR 3 A 505 &
HME R DO FHEGE - Bt ~ERK - fAA T EZEH
519 Bz o WIAE S 19 Bl WM R AHE - AREMTE
P BRAEFREEH -EHE - fifh - E2LFER - AH
RIENE G BRKILEGHMEZEHGERE . MHAEBHEEE
VEEESEBFHMES c MREMERTH . ZEKI 0%
2 e Frll REHEERRER ENNSTEA-B-C-D-E-F>
RABEENHEE - HE C HEFEER N EAlL K - M EZ
fERatek  NEBRIESLEAEIL -

- 25 -



G ) 7 SR H B R Y A B EE T URE R B 1Y 58
Stk BEHRAAAEER? S XAE X\ 25 wE H#
FEHME  TEREUAR - E2CEREN - HEHEEF
e pE AR DIREE - Tk —FRIREFESR - WMEMEE
BSYEILESRHE R M EAE R EE X AR EE R
F— o WA EEREMEEE - R wE S M
N hZ=MAE 2 -

EREEN TR HEAZAEENG R REEEMAE
"R A ER TR ENE  FOKEERNER > 2B AR
MREESFETHEESMEES  MRFE > ZEGHESTR
EM B 19 BREy G2 - HIE Ay 5 = ... A B
GE N TR W&k EMEREGY  EFEFHEG - HOXR
REREETHEEMHEGRE  HEMPERANE -FHATE -

Fibl B A EEHMENHBE  FEBME  FEME
R SR - B R EAAERE - R AT A E LT E &AL E —
B EHeErEaH  REIFATEANES oo REE" "
EE - FESHBHEHCHERRE? FTREEREZZEFETR
FEMAEENERBE > MEESERANEDEREEEEL -
8l F B AR O R F M —EES B RME R AT E
{6 1 Sy F - ERE AL+ 8RRy T R BUF £ Y HE A TR E S
i HEEMARSEASNEL - E[l&ET e R E B KIE
HoafmEE N ERERE > WMRBER  WMURG SR
MEZEgHEAEARN HEMEEEEE A "ME" " ?EREEE
B - X (7 a Z) 2 S RE 2 2 Fr bl - (R3EAEN

fi B 58 EgH AR Y o

ERE Iy EXEEE S0 HE -

(G # B LEEIEH - HXE#HA TR
TR AER > T UE#HERREE -

FEREBE - ZHER - EF > HAREEL - BA4E > B
e B IH Ay 520 - AR ARG Hg B - ZE A
it H L (FR AL B - Jo IR E M e AR R E AT AR

- 26 -



EEM? E2E 8 -l WEETENES - REBMEE
wedg c MPBEF L KFEDERBRENERER  ERESLEH
SEfE R -~ sequential WEEHE K= > BIFEFE M -

REE BAFOUAEOEEEZER - & 7B HEEFE
HEF FEGREEESEMNHE  JREREREFATH
FieE merits H{EHE - LAFEE —FEFLEBEFHIE
AREFRKNIEZZZEY - EFEMEE —HER > AR
G M H R DimAE - EE T D2 E Ak - RMEEe
KERZEL - B2 RAMRERN -

B B BB WMBER@wL - AL A2 — &
BFRagEss HWEANBMBEZEERHCNER » W1R
EAEHAMEE Y » AREZCESE EEEmRERAIEZA
gHERERZHE EMEENTFRE  FEAREXEGHFEHRIE
H L EER A RBEESSRT AR EREE - &
MABUER EIIEG  RARERFER - KEFEHNEZE
HHAEREE  ARCBEEN R FWmrk - TRZHKXR
gL ARTER B2 HREZENERF WREEHE
REANNER - 2% ZEKRm -

A 2GR EEHFE  WEEARSALIE O ILHE
Ho AT A R A i B 2 AR Iy R R A ) itk B B AR e B 0
i — i box—E B E 2 5 —H#MiE—E R M A g S BIHE
Bfie r EiRER  CHRAEFENVERRALEMHTERS
HER

ER LM AGHIRE  FHRBAI G EEZFEIRE
Bl o IEANAR 2 Ky - & LR EAERER - BRWEAESER
(REHA) Hir - ST RN milir » Alrellkt & mR
2% HiEILA SRR — 2 & H ATEd /Y binding value » A1y
M JAE2EEmE - HMABREHEEE - ER o M5 XM
REFEEREZSEE  BLABARY—(HIE T X —
TEBERA » FT DA 2R 2 — (| case specific » & —{E =4I 1E ~ &
F PR ATE -

E - FRFFERNRERE...KES - BRAN E RS
R EEEWE R EHNFEERNR - RREMENRE R
gmEE L&D - DL WEBEEHREEHE
FCR(2019-20)33 i ff » RiE B EEEFH » FILLEEZ T2
SHE — R MENE R - 2 B EHE Rie H AV Eh R E M - FrlL > 12

- 27 -



BT ¢ A ...t AT DU R S LA B B R 0 B A
PRI B R TR T AR TR — IE B P AR
52— {8 P B B T S5 R A — B - AT HROR B
FR R 5 O A <

LR BEERMBEAE 19 & HEEWEEERF » B%
B AAES 17 18~ 19 B » B E - RER - MEINEEN -
& i PR B I 5% refer fR 51 28 (RREHLAN) 28 80(a)fik - RE WA
B 80()fE N AE - 2 ME Rl P&P - (HEH £ - R
f e - P&P Sl AN 2 — e H B 2 - 1R 20 I (= 1 2 22 8008 Jt G TR
EemEM - ER BHREF-EREXRNVETER > —HE
Wik WABERERBEUENEREFRKEH - MK EE 5K
B EI R EHENERER - ATDAIRMA AT aeF BAE A 77 2
I E I MOE R o] - (H AU ZKER - B & 55 80(a) B By A% AT AL
A2 IR E M AR L RWOCR EEORHE E
EthExER2E#E  GEAkGFEBEY - TRl R KMERR
BRZEHEZFRA A - RARBFBRFKKMELZREFTEN
s oalEEAFERANERE - (7FFaE8)%HER -

R FHy - MEZEEE -

MBREEZE U LN - EHEEE TIEA B/ AFK
A E o B WBEER > KM AEREREHE - K
A % R e EFHEE

GRBAETAM FE B0y - K52 EE G FCR(2019-20)33 5 3L
{38 oy SR AL FE T 7 w2 2019-2020 £ 24 F5 & # By
B EXTREM AR T A AR ENFE - B RIGE
4.75% - RtkFmh RS 34 BilEHEEZL D —KICEANE
HWER T FEEMRE 20 BDLEXER - 2EBE T H
Ko WA EFE RN EREAREZRAFEDN -

BARGEREEBRE 6 A MEERE -5t Es%
IRAFAI LG ELE - REESFMEENE > 2 AH 18 B
A AW OK A LLA » B T3E 35000 #&EH A8 - (FMEE
TofrEfrE  EfFmES - HERAEA call BEFRERR
Ak - i EC EWEE AU - FREES 2 - AREMH
FiEMEZEGET  BEEGET DI HETERR EES
—{E BE 1 S R R A -

- 28 -



FERERER - (FE call B EERENK B EERITRR
MES NS - ARERHAGER - (HI RS S5
L R AT E A AR EETEE - £ T B U B LA -
M7 H LTS ERERET  FEENNEESEE - SR
5 i B ROR 2 M R B R T -

BEFAREIEE - B ERZ call BB R REERE 8 B - 15
EfEa .. EA KA Ay - MO — R - Al
HE LFL A .Rule 19 EFR AL EWE 7 Rule 19 @i fEZ B & N -
THEAMABRERNEFE  FULEG AR AL HEEE
et HARTE  MERMEGEFE  EF —HRF
METHERERBUNREALZERERLS GG - A#FE AL
KAE BN EFFHY

ALl - fEEEEEH CPAMERH - REMAR —EZH.... B
ek 7 HMAERFE  HEZR W - ARWORE call iy - 5
DETTER g A~BC D E~F fEiE —ZHARRRE
G ERS E-FFRHE 2GR -BRAEFEEEEHT  "HE
g R R ELASEEBE P RE T -

ISHER ER 25 19 Bt - 2 REHET - FrE Rt T 2R EH
I - EZE IR ERFREFEEZMEHE 2 A Paul tHiE K
il > SE—(LE"EEH" » K k2 & FE Rules of Procedure HY - i
fe— M N EEE - RBMAsE  REE..... SRERE —XED
TBEMEE - BMESLFRE - 55 call ik - KB EEE
— T REESEEW » i call Z5E & 53K - 5 sk 5 iE sl
EHEER . FEEEREN @R E8 7TH Bk REZEXKE
Ekk r iR EELSERKRMLHE » EFE2 XMl EEME
{H1E <5 K& {7 paper FCR(2019-20)33 B H i i » (HE S K& % -
(i J# 2% 1 [0] 2] Rules of Procedure (YZ B8 - E IR MAIEZE /N
fHE TS - H IR EEEFRER - FLoREEERANG
THENEE  EFE2F+E/(TEH - EF RBEREHED
MHEZRE  WRRERRIE . REE ORESERE - IEE
S B EFENE > HIENmwm  FTERERM - 28 -

EFE AERESR -

- 29 -



BEREER : ZH LR - EHEHAUE T —RBRREH > HZF
REBERERFA - R NEFEMH - A Ea] DUSEE i 57k
B LMERE - B GwWIARKEL T EINF - MAB E
e R EEE o R R RS o B
IRZR AR TE H o L MTE R o BB B B BT 0w A R
HEMAEREEZ - 55— WERKHEHFAMHER - A
REBEREEEE 7 (HA RG2S 5 0 EKEY - M1
et B EEE & -

B2 BIBEMB ST A BB B BB K - R =TS —
fE e RMEEFHMEES  AELFRE AT
{655 B BUE & PR HAME - R TEHEMEER - 1
o A EEANEMERREARE - WREER/UH T » BGHK
{9 3B H AR (B ER T B T PELBE DO s e 2 A Rl DLE AT - Al
R AT DUE R AL BENFOEERHEEZR
MY - RS A VIR BOK - B AT A S0 T A 058 22 5% 70 F
Ko wHGDREMEEER » FE -FHSMAEHY -

Pl R - MR ES - BIEERNEE - B ERFET
AE—YAHEERERER  EAL - EMEERE0HE
FET A DIEREE  ARERERE - KRB EERENR
B Z R o DA EE - R RM A EE I EER - AT
B E B R - KRR LART AR R EE - Frlh o JAMT Ay 28 — (@& B Al
gt AE D HE ST A B R - IR AN K& AR $1 35 {8 5] 50 P9 6 =] DL3E Bk il
Ko wBREABANFHFEHE - B [ EA -

FRALETZx  REHEREERHEHETER 7 —H#HE
HMREE MEELRREEAFE  MEATROTHEEES
fE > HERAERMER - B 19REEEREN - ARFEH - &
ERENETEBRKESEEeCAFRE  RIAAMNMERTEG
A BEXMATHEEESAFEFERGRE? HEEFHBLED
A AR ARFEMER"EGAETE WG - £ wE R
B MREAG R —[IEE - EKE— B EE R - Al fE
RECAMEE R EHEFLBERE - XAl reg B2 &AL
AEBANAEEEEGEM  (FE-DPBEENEHE  F1g5%
EZRZEW  BEARAE-EGRAMELHFERER - AR KL
FErRIRFEAREARTRITEEEEEEGME - MBI LUE
it BEE - REWNETEEGER - K70 3R 8 E
AEIRE NI L — A » BIATR T FHHERE — B BYEE - (2

e Eamae > RMER -EEXIEF e EERTE

- 30 -



HHE(THE M T - BB (T8 T - G T B
FHEMRNRETERS - RANHAY KR EEEEAY
SUAEHOR b Bt B (R R - A0 5P A A
REEHEEN  EREBLMH  —HEHTE  GRERE
P8 (E 2 0 AR

KREBFEHESEHEEVE UARBEERSZRBEREE
h%E RIEWMERELERHEELAEFTETHEEFEAE - M
ifiE— part EREEMNBEE AR - AHEGTENMNEEES &
GEGEAH  HAEGERHRTUICRBRHEE - MH -
WEBRERS R EERE - 2 AUEHHESTCEHEERME -
AR R G R AR A ] P 5 — 20 R B AT S (A IR e
BARGEREZHRKEHRFE - HEXRE - XKERHES KD
MW REgSREMEBRIME » (7 F#ZL8)HH LR -

EFE  BRBUEZEE -

BRAERS : EF > KA MERMATERE-FHOERZEES A
N5 B AR SE - QR AE R E - FOE B R I8 — AR Eh
W"my learned friend" » B P52 15 Rl DL & — 85 » DAE %
At Em o WAHGE MR » 2D EREE —HE  FEREHR
g EHM - FrAA A — B AL A KB - A2 B
R RFMIEZE — A # AR REWESTE -

HHRAEREMZ —EE - 5L WS #HERZEE - KAAE
B2V NGEBH O ILEGE XX WEBERCEFHZE - &
K BEHERREAEE KD FCT1/19-20(01)55 3 - EAE 1 F
HErEEE - HAIRE FC72/19-20(02) 5t S fFRYEE » (HIR1GEE
e lS B - WA A ZEMM AR A& RS
BHERENEE  WRINMRGEAXE  EPCEHEREHRY - ik
EEGITEEHES - i HZE G A&t bl 77 R GEEET &
A BIRF (e RN RARAREEKREHEEHMET - EEHE -
Wl A ERREE N - FBEEEEI leave BYTE I - FAELR E
B leave AR DLRFNRERA M E G EERFE R A EL Y
MRCREZHFALZELZNG  EERERFHE - A 20
M AN ESEREZR - MREEEERXAE - FHEEROZR
BB WAV - NEERN - R HAH Y

- 31 -



REEEZR  LEEE - AIERERM24 B I1EgEE -
RERMIIEGHEER (B2E) M (ZmEE) - RKMEELH
EEBEBERNER - Pl EREELTHE - BEEHGFER
HEETTEEEY c HEHGBAS - B application A& - MY
Form 86 » —E5th "8 - B ERFEMITER - FTLL - 20 5HH
HEREENEEEFREREELIE - EMIREE A&
ATl 2 S R EE 19 RITHE EREMEEL - RBEELH M
M R AKEE - MH - REHERBEWIERE - EFIE
W E - FERE G ESE#Eg HIR ... BI%{# hearing & —
Gl BAE - RGEEI Y - RE T BRE AR - ATDL
HEER AT RN — A 0eEs  FRIRRES (T
ff - EARERREEHRE REBEBEEIEE NG E - HATH
R ENE B o RIBWAIES ARG - (EE R X EE
e E - BEHERE TS -

ShHh . BN EREMEEMEARARN AR  Big L ME
RGNLETCSHEEE  RABRAETERE - FF - REAFEKX
FHEER PEMEMENRMITER  EEBME > ST E—8—
SVHE s MR 22— FEENEE > IUBRMREEIRZELEER
R G B o] FE T RAIRAT RISk - A 0] LLEE Commissioner
of Police » H[I CP» F|Zk 2 WM EH » HEEREM - T » "
A ERERETE " IR W BN EE 19 By » 4 o gE A 2 355 21t Bif
Ko AW BBIGMAREBEEZZHGEN  BE R - HAR—
BT o mEEE - FEHTRMUFRKRMEHNER - E4
BAGHEEGFIRTEFRERE > FEHERZEERESMUFERE
FEmMOKB AR KREREHRE - RHEEREEZHT
HE . (FHFFELREHEMUEERE & AR EGMME
5[5 o

EFE EXEFEE -

EXEWE BB ER -

Bk ZAMEEHERZEWHE > HEA —HR KM
o A RZSEECHE - HEHAKECREEROME - #
EWREEREREEER A Ll 77 R GEEE T R A 0 BB M
KRB E - N e g EwE HEW -2 g1/ FC#
fThtam > WiHE —2# > WHE 708 WL EFERWL
B 2 Bl an H Ik FF i iy R 26 -

- 32 -



MERE =N GET R - B E ey AfEfREEEERR  H
AMEER  AEEFHEL  XHEAEXANEEERZSR
ErROUEMGHMA Y EEEL e M mAER - 38
o R RATER ARG RILMEE R 2 LA
At - WA — o 8 o M o BN ERT 0 B TR A
EEIIHIRR  EESGFREF EAFERE

|
o5

r We o

“
. Ef
—

o

HERHHERE - [FFH S 2 WA EEmEILJE—HE
RAE  RER WNh—EgHeR - IAEAHES - IR
IR 7 EE X ER IS EE %R - XEE - N EREE
WG 284 i KA E - AL 25 a2l A g 3 - (RIFAE T
e RFEEREEGRHE AR EENAER - EEE
Mg e 7 OGN HLER

MRS T — R AGE - ERSE HEBNHE -
frue" Aok dElfE —EH AR E - BIRIRAAEEE - (Ra] &
Mo A EERFARHRAESHE 180 He bl » IR g &K
fr down payment 73 2% /b RS AT IR G EHFARE S —E LR E
"o Bl EE SREEH  ZFAEEFRF - MASH MR - KA
KEMBIE? R ARRZER - (FEEZEF E?EHE EHE » —#
AfR AL ARE - AER

BEEAGMER? A& ECK BB SERME? 200
RERY » R —EZEEFRM - (RAREWEE - IRZREBER T
down payment &%/ ~ Hi2H 180 H ot » sEAEK - A
e - R A DU E — @R E - REZBRIIET - RERK
BWORE 2 REREK - AeifEE2sAE ? AEIRBER - B
AR ALEE - ERAAREN - EA BRAME -

MARSMZEENWER KBEEXEER T 5 XHAFYERR
BEDRGE R E - N iy 7 = Ay & E"... . RE &\ b
HANERRE — XN EHEREEEHE —ARE 19 &
W Rk 2 ——(E M E" 7 S 0y 8 A & E - A s A 6L OE (T H A
REIA B AR - BB B AR IE 2 BREEF - Ty (Al IR a] DLRR AR 48 Hi AT
EEFEANEN?MRANERIME » HAREEGEHEE?
R G EPF 2" — R EAEH" B ARV EAEE"Z"
REMGER" - ISt 2 A SE—T - K7

R RE - NGEF. ARG M E RS Y

-33 -



RRNEERE 2 R ERMEHER - REF -8 HE
R

EF:RITERBEScEEEMR  PRIERAAESS B EE

RmXEHRE B WEERGEERTLL T - WAEER S
[l

ZHTARER G T AR A ERAERE 0 EXESRE T WM ERE
By WA AT DASCS » HARI DI ER - B2 - REVEFEEFT
A FHRE" —XEAREHE" - (AT PUE - BRI LR’
" EREHEMAERXEREERZRY  MREHEZEGELA
o T [

HBEME  EXRE R RN i ® 7 A
FHEEy 7 BERFEEFHERALRERE  BAEETERK
57 ARG AR — M BT A E i E R R AR
W RS Rk - AR R — T - E A -

EFE:WBE -

FE : At FC72/19-20(02)5f - EHMEFR. ... EE 2 HE
i 6 TN - LERESHAK > MEEZ2EER - 2R
EARB WA 533 - SRR PTEBORIREE - B
FC71/19-20 53 » ZEFLLEE » I I SRR EZ 1 X
o

ERE AR S - 3 B H 2 8 I = - 7] ge 58 A 5y
BOLAERAR - ATDL - JAMTE A T AR EHEE" - Al feE
HRIMAYEE - ROERTER  RIFEHEREZAEE > W
Z A>B Al D#Z2RIEREREE > EMER e EARERE
(EEHE s AR T AR TR - AR B AR HUE A R GE (A
HH > HROMBERESINEFERFTD -

ERTGECHE REAFLEHEMU HEZEGTHEH —
EmMEOBN G ENEFRKEH - HEF % C M E AR e

34



BIES—ESG » Sedli] —EERBNRER - FHlE] T RENRE
P2tk - MERE g 8 M iR e Bl E (8 5 B A AE % 89 55 2
e B 19 BRERZE - ArlL - AMAESI R Rk By ... Bl a0 1E
HIE—SZIEEHBRE" MG Bla5%E EM C- £1R 2 (A
HE - flaEE - EEHEENRE - EFERMFESR - 280
A MR BEEEER ERATEF EAFEKEMN
mHE&AEFMAEE  FIAEESHEEERE - WREMNE
ff 5% BN Rl DAER A - 5 EEEH 2 A LR BT » IR Al 4E
TR GEZERN > BEERWER  MERZEBEITERE
HERRME -

(F# A& LEEHT - G EDFRKNEE 757%E)

ERE:AE AR REMOEREERK  ARIMBRES
FRERE - AR E G HH - B/RE - EsR — KM
HENmMARZRERGHGW - E@E T C BRI - HERS
fTatem - REBEESTH@wE R —X - 0K E5E % 2 K E &
A B by TR Y EE R R R8T E - KEEE
IREERE - 20 2 BE - EYEEE EiE b

ME : RMAEEE R MR ER XFYEREK.....

ERE:ME-E MRKMEE T - BRI W%’
FHEBRENW - XBNHEH  KEe - HALE  HE
HHGECERADIN  AEZSRXEAFMWIME -

e RYEEE -

Ke\BBE - TALER » G EOZOLE D - # 2 #E (H 5
RIERZICCT » KREEER A G GwE FFEE - S SHIES
11738 {8 &0 73 /2 — Ky - Frlh - R SF e ERF# T LR T
Ml BR 7 i A ER o o BER T  BERE KRR - B AU AL o0 2 5 TOE
H o AR T — KR E BN T =B E 0 A8 & I 5
Z o BOUeHMEEER » £/ -

- 35 -



EFE HEBMEMBREAIRNGTF#EE  WHEIFRAZ®R - DIR
AR B AG 19 B2 - fRERIHS RIEE T - AT » RREH ...

KENBEE - % - AR EE R E R A e — (6 a1 [ 12 1
FLIEERENER » ...

EE BRI ERE - BIEHEE ...

Kel@=me - [l 2 BRI stop TaE R EEIL...

EF :StopTE - HE....

KELEZE g E & -

EFE T WMIRREREAE - IRELAHSE 39 B AT DL T - R ) 2

FEIFIEEE M » N ELERRIERE 2

KENEHE © HAAHE 39k 7

R AP EEERET - MREE.....

KElHER ... Wit iR MERNEHEREERHEAE DA
REHARE-BRZMDEBEALE BRI B AEF L D
FIR/ERL rulein» KRR rule out TS XK - (HIL A FH i
gk e

- 36 -



ERE - ARAEMEP I o AN REEEGER - RBRERE T IR
B WEMOTENFHRILRERGEEFE - FEREAN
frHE Rl @ "R I 5 &R E M E - 20 2 @ H R E (#
HE  2hEMER Y

-

Iﬁ : uESz%A %\ °

e X BHEE  WHEEFFRE £ T EHEE "M E - R
MR B R EME" KRB B ER" EIE Y

RBXERE REEN ERREM AR AR EEE
WTTcmmm—ﬁﬁﬁ%%A%E%%E%?H%EM%
» — [a] 0 & BH I E A éé\/’z B e  EEFE"HFENEH
%’@l METRERNMBEER" - IS AHEBARER > (KRR
EEA f’mﬁﬁ%ﬁﬂzmkkoﬁ[]%ﬂf AN — R T LR B e

EE AR 17%%9%&72’%%%%5@73%  REERENTTE -
REBEEERHBRER  E"AERNMHBER" BB T -
i (i Rk B E S E/%’x"fi:‘ fi & for 5 2K -

X BHRE MW AERCELGHEER Y ARCHE. ...

o0

EF:GECRE—(EZH - ER2 for 2 B ZRH.....
HEHLE C BERTBY > B A ... (FHFHEECRKFEE

- 37 -



o BMEEERAEEAREEH - N EAHERE A
AHRGRERE HEERMZIET... KM EXESLERFIET
W E 2% H - frlh HEZ2REE RO ITE BIER NS
FrROMBEER" HEAREZFHRE - Ml&aHEHE -
EZ e AT & —(H K20y klg - (HEMAAHE - 28 8N
o R FE AR R 20 - AL B — (i P 55 B AR SR R By T =
AifefMgEamktume - &P RELIRE HEREEM - EA
RBEFBBERRE - WK XERBGE R - A RZEE & ERE
Gk HHEECEE+DEM R -RTAHEC HEHGEC
RAEBZME > —EEARRFAREE - Hx F HZRELHE
mEEWA R ERNIMBER"  KREEER - EZ2FELEEN -
TUEREZERE -

BREZRE  WBERREFRE > WMREFGwEHEEGE
ERARB(MBZEGSRERF) F I9REHEGEAELN
GRkiy > AEEAERAEEEEMET] - ERENZER e D L
EEINF - AeEEFE - HEEREAMOY - w2 i b mr sk &K
it - @E - B{fH 19 RFEANBHERED » RERGHEH
o BCEEFMRAR Y HEAENAAN > KEEHEEHOA
HE BB BHE » BEE aHem LEZESE XM E - a1
RARBEE A » T Z Rk —( gE & A M E 8y NR7kE % - B
am b MMUEZFEERKS - TP AE5IHE 19 & - —# A
BEACHA R A R A ] -

SR FEERELIE-PERERIIHSE 19 B - 2
BXEg®E  MENEIREECEEENZEN > WREKMAESE
o & [ B o] R ——) 7R A1 o B A 3 B - BT AH B ——1 SR Be
EE o HaETERRE MR EES T 2 FERE
M ER - (REHIRLZHREELEGEERMARNEREH
WEE S R ME 2D AN B R REERZ
MR EEER Al SR ESMMEME&EFE  FAFT LA
B 2 R Rpell & - M2 EE —(E fe 8] & M E AT A 22K
HEMEND TSR NREESEEEE  HEANTFR
ZR—Hx o EHRNREER  REE - AHBIK . ABEANL - EHE
o fE g X EHEHBAE e - AREEE-RE A
KElxEamnss  CTHEEWMLE & » —ZoE# » M
FEEGTHER I9ER - G EHEREENWTE  BIEFEE
HE-UEEREES  MUORHERBREWHAEEE » L5
RTEA LRV HEEE . AR DR HE A S - EENEK -

- 38 -




EEEHME  FEFERT]  ZHEANRT]  RERFEK
R 75 R —E - (13 S REEREFER R 20 % R E
R AN B o (R B ES M A  » BOESRIE L B B R YRR
IHEN B G - HINE KB NB RS - AT -

ER - BREFIAELRSR AW (R A AREFRE - 1H
FE . FHSWmETFENEEE  HEHER XA L—0f
HMTE HNE—E2RAFEN  FMEREPT—EBH - I8
AHETME RERET - MEFE - Bl lESEN » Hiwe
REF e » HEMRADLGERE » HEHE —X#E » KXW
HemHERE  ERESCHERMERRE ME  KIEAH
HHERER  FERMRAFE  WEEREERHE - HELH
SnET - FHBEE BN - ERRFEE - (RAAEEEAREERL -
R EEE.. . K. WHE G =ml  REEEENEER
Bl - RBFE. . RIVBFEEN TR REKE TRA - EHF
THERBEREE -ZANAMAE  BAFEZERMEL - KB
AR - REMA TR LT EE [ G E % -

HEREFEENGTE B ENERNRRR  HERAHR
fREREAHLE S WHECKEAEE A NeH..... . BUR
Jefg Al - REBERMIEE o LIS RER WA - ERE
reGBHERERE. KW EMHMELTEE XM BEHEENR
B HEESEHAFEEL HMEE TR ORSH - &M
REERIFERME » RMEREEHE » BUFEKH 2B T i
GG SRXENTFRE"FR" K WIRGEH[EE » (RHERZ
EIREHEEREEEE - MRIFREEE (ALK EREE......
Bl A E T th & WS ik - (7 17 a5 E L)

TR BRTEE -

BEFERE  £NF - RITAES > HANRBUTER IR E
Ko FFEB N o P HHARBILEHE - BN HEE - MR ESF K’
R RIEHRMOEREEM Zg g ERMOME > AHHL
FIEE - " 5" R H f H IR & ¥ A% 9 (& 5,000 T OT §% -
2 918 5,000 EJT - IRHEAZ" "B IMEYEKKRE" - ZORIR D 73
st o IRANEEEL MBS ARR B RO EE - Al B R it
;o WMEMZE AE"REZG" KM BEEEERN -8
ERH—n—2 2SR A T " iREENEF o I

-39 -



NAREEG  WERWMKEHA LR - BGREEES - HE
ERRKRENRER - ENMESHE  MEWS - WREFR
PRy R GG A DO EE 03 A B e g R HH T g R [

EEEWME A A LB RORAE -

B2 R EEM IR RIR M RIT EE A - BEFFE > R
OAMEHZEETEEE . @8R FFE - RRRMAHES - 2
SEPE A Y MRS RTIKEGEEAN  F2OF
BAREMN S PRI E EHERT YA DERNE
Y LEmHENZDLR > B AN SRR B B0 8 SN i
&P - DAt H 9 {8 5,000 EoT OT 2715 - ;5B 2 53
foil > £ - BERHRSE R ERAFERERNE  FRE
e R AR - "R ST Ry () AT S P R R 0 e By R E Y
GISSINENES R (7R L AT/ &= B TN = = 5 K IR o - R S A
EHERERMA 9 5000 T OT 8 » hAEILHINF - H2
N E - WA o WEALER - RS M
e s WM E &R R" REREICSHRENET - R0
froody » BHENFEEERNR - HERXR>IFHE - 24 I0FH 2
— [l Hoo Py ok - WILER > NELE . EEMAH A0
oo ESLEE B AR A R B
EABER  BE-EHEE.. FEERNBENEEK 2
K HE Al HEX - DEAESHERNSERIERS
PNENESE STk

EF - EEESREER  AHBERHEE  RERERE - H
RURE N AZ2EHEER  HEMAAEESH - A
FREIACLE number ? Ryl F 9 @2 ICHY OT & » ZEREEME -
AEBREZE > RAEFREM - G288 E0NEE 0 KEH LIREE®#
A ARRIB S KA R - WEHFE— - FHERE - H
REEGBEFEH  KRFENEMZEERLTE G2 22
IR 28 SERIEGRED - WG E R A -

FRDL - S EE - 5 REREAE  REMEZG EZ5HHE
GRETI Ry BANI 6E A R AT E AT - BIIR 93 Jf H 2 (6 £ 2R
H o B RE RN g RN AN - (R 2 M8 ASE [ &
a o PeMEramiEr - WMEEEESEFHRE » SRORELE
RRBLZ TR FrAA EFIEGRE > HEARREAN W B
REZEWH - E2aEs H (EREHA) 26 80(a)friyzE N HFE
EMAEFE  EXERAFE  HB?RAFE - BEHRERE

R EAREZELMAOME "= XNFE" MERgHE - 4R

- 40 -



MELME  BRARERZE » RMHE T8 L4 50 A 5E
o AR 2 A0 clam OT §% - A0l #a% 2 s 5 - 5 (7] 248
NE FE 2 2 Ry ol i A AT DU 2 DA S Ry fn] #7958 B 5 B HC fth
NBEARE? BRZHEELIEY - HIE 2 RLEPILIEEZ
HAMEE R - HEABEIE - 5052 EF40F 2K -

HERMER - RE (FEFH T ER&E LRGBS AR AT
FHAZFFM) F 1419 - Bl TIEWE 2 > M5 HEA
INEZEGERLEBEZEE > 1993 F - NEHHE > £A
FEAMHEANE LR G EMOTERIE - EEMEEERE
2Usas . SEMEMEER > F-o R MBER - Nk
EEEEHNHEAR EEERVE R - (KM 25 B -
FREIZFHRIFMITERMEEAN - A2 R FZIRE |

FRLL s ER - SREGEEZE T EE  REEEERNE
CHAEREBA - MRAXXA B BM EZFRGRE  BA
e —HFELEFEEE - AR ATER T RASWAEE RS
ERME - MEERASAHERE > BEAMHEEE > WEE
FTEHERE  HERE  REAXLIAKXK"EER" (R12
Bk BAR - R XEMETEE  RE B XA - FTLL
] RE AR 5 - 9 & 5,000 T /@ " iE R ARy - SRR H R AE
HME b B MREREHNFERE  BAEIA 2B LR -

TR EEEE -

HEEZEE AIRFREIREHE  AFKH  HEERMEE
IKFiE A a Iy s NEHmER > RMRFEHEFERRILE
NHEwBILNFEBREN LR - HE - WAEIRHEERE - B
e A E TR

HRt—5 8 REEFE - AP RA E L. B EEE (D
HREERLZER WA EEFEMP - TE—FIR - R ER (Y
BREgg#EERF) WEE 5432 1- B~ AHF 15 &
# - MLEMBYH BRI - MEEE 2 18 /N » il B3 AR ZE B
f2 - fEEAERGR - R e E E R EfE LR BN ?
B B M B R M AN AT Y > BIETaman(E 28 19 R EH 5B
EE E 1T - 5 am iy [ E A8 2 EE 18 N EAY M -

APl fEEMAEARER  BIEMIEABENFEH ? B

41 -



BUEF » UARABEERI KRB ERERMNEBREER - HH - 8
{87 2L -

ERMZE » WM BN - P EBIFBAERE » Kt E
T8 - WMERBUFKE  EHEZERE 84&H - £2H 5 &8
& &2 H M TAE » BEEN—E D - HE > RHEFERMAOYEG
A A s e 7 Rt e RS BUE AR N AR K e AR B R T A R
AR RBRBAT B R B AR ERERERE - 2
G E (EARER) $IiEgmER 2 HMES BN E 0 E
B BT EOR ? B A K - B e B T SEUT AT M
EARNER  BERIRCHHT - #HE2ERFEN?

i T AR AR A 2] fRER 2R b I R R S IR A A E il
B IRGEGE R EE A B BB AT - KRS HE AT a T E &R AT I
WG e MERE G EH - 1 HZRIRRE &
AELL - HE - HEEENMENOKRE (EARK) ATa] - WEFE
RHHF - M EEEE] - SEENDHERFEEEZER -
BiEreERIER B AERETER NEeERIET - F
Ry PAM BB BUR e B ey — R RE D AR - SEERE TR - HE KR
XEEZERLD -8 HEFBBET - BRAEEEENFKE
ZHAMARERN B KiMKMESRERE £ HIREEER -
BEEARKE DK ANEHEMERE" ? HFE R E
e BEEEERMABELRICBCILEEEZENET »
9 e 5% m] LSRR B AR 2R G g Mg i ~ B BlEnt &
HARERFERNNER  BELHRE  BLHEREARETT
B e th iy AR - Al 2 R OR -

FEHINE  EBREFEBTOESET 28, 5REZ A
60 REBUY - EEWNFESAHE 2 2 855 > £ 10 5w o 818
MZT - BREBEKWNFES » RERZ A BXHEHITETR
fa 04 HZ2H ANEKS  WREESNE » TULERE - HE -
EEBRREEIILGLBA R E - 5 BEERAZEERS
fake news > ZEfg#H - (HE - NMEANE - FEAR > EiRE
HEMEER - 2 HEERRRA -

iR & REE RS 7 8 A AR IR M E R R
LA &ER Bl B - AkEEPLEFEEE fake news » Fiwl
DL 2 - g v DA USRI~ BRI R IR 2 38
(B8 A A A LA o (57 6F a5 )

=42 -



R WIRFEEE S50 -

WMIMRBE - BHEH - MG HEX
MEZgHERERY  HEBLIFEELAE
i R 2 5 BN T YRR &

HEB®E » KM

X
AR TG N

HWERTFE—REFET 20 ZHE—7F 7T EREEE - B
FFECABREABERFNBR T » BEETHEHEHESE -
MEEL - EBEHEE  BABENFNER  HEAdEZFZF
2 RN B A0 52 i o w2 (] M 22 M A L0 o A
FEmENARE  NENFREESZZOANE  LHEBREFE
HEC—HAMEERREHELEME - SENBRAEERH - £~
B RERNEREEITHELLCETRERAKE
LR MBS ~ AT RAE -

FHEE EFREERGEL BRMABEKEZER - B LE
BRE e~ ENE  BRMAED  WRAOBENFIEREE T
BRbEE A B EEMFEE NS - EfEE M FEE S @ H 2 claim
1y OT % - = 2] 9 {£ 5,000 FoC - & 9 {& 5,000 Eowh K AYE »
T £EFHE 9 (E 5,000 St NE - B A 2D BEEAEE(E
mE FEEEANLANFEFER ? DI EEEHER LR &
{6 OT By e A4 fe] R 5 — LEAHBABY R - BT DL » 7258 (HH
N FAC T W g A A S A e

R EFREER (MBLZEEgRERF) F 19Kk 8%
5 I g £ A AR A Rl 51 558 — 300 B9 OT 82 » DU B 5 B
FIEEMHFEAE  AEHRMEKEEEFE - HE  FEMHFE
WELT - EEERT  ABEEERMAN(MBEEZETTEERF)
BBz EHKOHE - &5 TR ED —(E#5E 25
gliiE B radical BRI - TFEERE G - HEaE BT AE R
REMHEG -

FEEEERT  KRFEF-HEE AR (EARE) B+
= R T B A A R U R 2 SR BE ST IR FE AT Bt 25 TH
MR > MERFE > JEGRRAALHEEERREEER -

EEELREEEFE  HEEF L WMRAEMEETE#
TEOENR T seEHRMERGFY - TPl ERERF B8
FEREE - WMEREZEREMFTER ?HEREEH T —
fE 770 hmtan : "MAREEEER » AZMHGxE D

- 43 -



MEMZEGSRAKRERE 2O ETHEHEESHE  EEE
THAELENFEE "

W - Bl GTE D AGEEHERF 20 RMER - 3K
WEE KRR EREES  HEME S HIRM RN -
MfEEE T B AFEZIERIVIH"ESERER" B BE H 2K
Bl » BFEAENF LA EFTEBAESRRE R - HEAMILE
FHLEEBEEBEEN > R R EENGE  FghlIidmaEs
EREFETHEHELAERE L - HEEEAEARAS ... (FH®E
EREESTHEEMAE » REWHE - FEK&RE T HMAT
HEAMERFANEA > JBE substance -

FRLL - (R BT E A - 2F/EITEAN - AR EFECEEN
FAENBIHES) - WA EE - WM ERLZRE - B 2055 R
OB i R Y Bk 1L 2 B R Th RE SR (57 47 a5 ) 15 K 2 By
M M EE" ARG E" -

TE - HERES 5o -

BERBE : LWL - HINSRERQEES R 2019-2020
FREAHEGMAEY  REREE REFHENEL -
F 2019 12 4 3L H « S LA LAME  RERHENE

o
=

EAXCMABENFHHAE  HEHFEREZE G EREM
.. B R FCHE E » B R L - 5 R BCR ek & B A
bR A FERY —shs (L > giaE EELieH — B ABEREL - RE
AELBEF B R REY] K B EWREBENE oL &R
EREEFENTHRIERRE - AFEREGRHESEILEYE
18 57 ok 2= By AL - BRAL1S5E 2 — (B 5 50 5 B T 1 1 H o B AR
B A R B ES P e E B R B R E - A E R K LA
ELARTE TR 2 W ] wik & 7 1 F R o

ER HRSREHIAR G - TWEANFRE - 2 H ¥ S
By WA BWEG=AIDR®R el EHEERER
AT DA B st [ 0 i B R AR T R F AT B A s B R N A R T T Y
FIHMGESE » WEFZHFN—M -

- 44 -



EREIE - EENEMEHFERE HESEFER 17 &
HABE > BINESINE.BIATR - BlEE 10 2 &4 BUS
AR A T - HE B 2019-2020 F£EAFHMEHE -
E R T A - KRAIRE"SEEHAR" - REGHE - DA
—(EH =T ANFEKG - 2B ABCEZNZHEE 100 A - 5
ETH  WARNHGEERFHEENEREAT mMERL &
-

E 2 B L 77 %2 e —— A1 0 (35— 0 th
fIE - TRREE - BARS  RIWBEEGH  LEEE

HE - RREASEMHBNEE LERRE  HESSEMNSES
Ring  -tWwet+toEEN EDESHRNS - RELEHEH
MAEFHEB  HERFHHRF LR ... R ERHE LEHE
H > RENGENEFERGEL  HE?RALENFEH - 6
T AR EEEBINERGZ 4 ZEHEREROALT > &
%A MR HEEN A e MMM o 2 ER -

ERE P UFRBEE 50 -

HREBBE - TF - HAENHAERZHEN - WORET R
e BRREREILEFBETARK  BXR-HLFE > BHE
pR R A - RIS M — L E - R ER T 2 RE AL
A B DIERE R REELAF ARG R R RALTE
G B R AR DI M@K FTETL R N EE R
e BHYTE M - 3B B AV TSR 2

AANBRGER A EFERG T oE0CRN AEKRED
AR HEMEADL - 3 Mg T DUEE = T B P A R B E N
> EEHEBECER Y EGEREERE (1984) FHEHE
At g - WEF WAL v WEZE (EARK) 5T - &,
MEEMEES] > TOEMZEANRES 9REAEE - EiE
AL - E R M EE A B BT B T L WATE R
e B SR A A0 Y MOE L E S B R e Y

BAMIZERT RS HAREEE S HEREANZF
EE-ABREABREE  ET-FRAZBEANERS
A - B TR 30 BN o B AEIE ST - E n] UM A
BRI OT - fh{f 555 (i B AR ~ SIMUE 55 ~ R - ROAGELT -
g MBLE LA GREER ? "€ —" WMTFEEEREN

- 45 -



Rife A~ R A "N =—" W KT AT > JERIHAT S
10 1H....11 H 11 H - HHEBE®RA.....

ERE  FBIRREE F .

HREUER © WEERSEE - BRER.....

EFE  OREE .

HREUER - WE S o EBESHRE - REAE -

R MRMRIREE > REZELROES -

HREBE - TATHF B 2

EE : REREE N =—""> HEif......

HBREBE - WHERDMEEH G4

TR R EEGM..

HRBUER © (R EREE K5 - BENK -

EFE & E o IR (REMERmE S o WA E SRR E -

HBREJE - Hle &2

ERE  MRMFEAEERESEMEY - RS RAEFEZRT -

- 46 -



WREAES - "KE"ZHAM.....

ERE R -REE....

WREAZES - .. PR 5 (o2 H Rl Ay

WREBEE - WEK T 7

ERE AR AR A

HBREHBE - MESHEEX

A

iy

?

£

ERE  ARAWIEFEF T .

BREBE  WEAHEEEHRSW -

EF  FEEHEZ.....

HREJE : ... & H R e

IR BRBFEE - (5 H A MEL  ERRIELE - BER.

HREUESR - LA ? (R EEEE S AR ELE

47 -



ERE ;R RBEE R

WREAHE : ... R B PR O -

xR HERNE - TRABE -
R FAREEZK - HEKRS - RNEGRFBECDE -
il A 1 B E - ERE AT SR G RIE R i E S iR Z
A BEH [ -
(F#H KL 10 fF 44 70 87 (2)

(F#Z T 4 5704 77k F)

EFE RRHEERMET RMAEEN A TLEEENES » R
YA EFREEREER REERE  FRESE > ZEES
B 0 5 -

EFE S50 -
REERR S oEVHH - HE  WERRKR(WBLZET TR

Bfy) 819k #@EEEEHTHE —HAE - &4 HERR
B -MEHHOBEGEAMN HREEFR 19K - #HEREER
HEDFE I9KREHMN AR HEZE - HFEBELELREZ" -

HEDIEBESR R - 5 19 &3 In accordance with

Rule & B & & » "the Committee may summon"——comma "as
required when exercising its powers and functions"—A % H H
—{[fl comma——"persons concerned to testify or give evidence" -

- 48 -



B E Ay as required"” s $ N B 3 R AT 3 (5 R 5% B 22 B8 single
out S8 Wil &% - Al By » H & 2 {# clause J&"as required when
exercising its powers and functions" - 20 B #H{E R E B2 E 15 "as
required" /& — {f condition » A} B & {n] "when exercising its powers
and functions" X A~ & — @ condition 0g ? A B - "persons
concerned" » H[IZ5 =% M 1~ 2 — {f condition g ?

2R - fEfTHE 19 BEl - 26 EZHEZE T decide 26
required - & 75 "when exercising its powers and functions" » DL &
Commissioner of Police /&2 75 persons concerned g ? 415 K% A
SR - B2 (% 12 9 S0 approach - & 2 3 B E T AEH
fH"as required"f{ { = single out T - [Al s "as required" & & &
"when exercising its powers and functions"fJ -

a0 R BE R R (R & 38 2 /Y approach » FL EH =R HE ZF —
decide » {HR]E & - "when exercising its powers and functions"zk,
"persons concerned" - EEH H M2 W G &)L determine BY - Ff
DL HEEFESE 19 B d» & 155 iy as required when exercising
its powers and functions" » 8 — A HEFE X EHENE
summons YR H > FEFHATHY (GEEFA]) > HE2FIHA -
EREEH—-LEIR - #41"as necessary"” » 1fij =& "as required" >
DIk HE®REANEERE..... . RESE HE2—EEE TS &%
= —{[f bona fide [y requirement- B[l & it - &2 7 fft H & Committee
FEEFEATLLE > RRE —EEEE - &FF0K"as required™s {ii &
—— R RO RA S NEF P RA - B R e E A R USSR
—— as required by whom ? & as required by the Committee or as
required by the member proposing the...... By A 2?2 & as
required by whom g ? It is just a general bona fide requirement >
AR - EIRBEH ~ 175 {# powers and functions [ -

Fir DL - 3 {8 2 3 B 30 & H M8 i — (&l component F » B (a1 2
break up fi 3 {lE§ components g ? 41 {] # B2 fth 9 approach. & 2k
KN T RENGHERFEES @AM 22— KA - EHMAy 1Q
AIREA IR 170 < H AR - 5 19 REA M fEEE ? &8 E Rt EE
FHEE... AR CEERETFEEGRYIE - FHEM#E  (HREE
B REBHHEREEN T EHE[E#HE - single out "as
requiredZ il F 2 N &R - A& > AR EH My #EeE - 50
E 15 B condition th & - ]2 - & 58 H GG draft B 2K B i
Bl ? WMNEELIEN - B > R EERK » 5 19 RIEAR

- 49 -



EEH - EE2HEF 19 B Wy drafting AYMEE - E R > KK
AIDNEESAEE  BAEHERBEEEIRVERE » FE
— NREEME R E R E [ further comments » & # &l o] &7
PR Eh M Ey proposal WE ? B HIHE - EF - MEREIE A - 12
LEA K E Ay proposal g ? EJF - 2N HHERY -

XA -

RBEREBE - REHE 2 (HMATE withdraw I ?

EFE : (RO fl withdraw 1E -

PREEE RN - BRI R - B E B R 2
E B

EFE  RULMEE -

KEVEBE - 2HEF - HRBERR  FETRUEHEER
| AFERMEREE - TANEEREER - KMRE
KEEEDRFEZERRZT  BilE2RAERA » XRE
NEBFEEME  FrAERRER - ML HSEEEHEH T 3 #
AR A EMFHFENR + H— » WAEENEHNEZHBEK
-G —& . B EFE" B2 WM EREFRE R
RHEILEGMHEZETN G - HEMEESE - 2N
WESH B= AEEEEGE T E2BEaNHRERIH -

SREE - MEZZAREZRFHCWHRE  FBREE
EEE - HEZER 5 FH R R ERME M RRT I - A
Lo el DLy 2Ry - o R/ T A EHB H M2 E &
AR amms -8 3 MERKEZGHEGHEN - REEMA —f
mEEA - hEF"HEFE" A R/REED -

e NBEEFRTERAFHEHGEE L IFNENR  JREE
BEHGEREFRERFRAKEZHGFHENR - Frll - #EREH
TR ERERH THEA(MBZETTRERF)F 19 RIESR
DT g M NEAESRERFIK - HEEZ2RGHENWE

- 50 -



B AR ERMEREL T - AERFERE - HERMH
WHERGE  ERE R 7 ZRESHE — M A - (r{]E =
B2 DR 2 BE ML VBB AT R E G e v a2 E R -

AN A BRERN M T HEE - M2 FFE D
Brmmey—fa o FEMmEE 5% REHED - EFE > KA
FERRMNG - KIFHE—ER - FEHORK - HEERIGE
gt B R (E AL - E Al RiE R - R B K i e
FEHLE HERERERHIEHEERE - AW #EH KR E - 3K
HESUEEFRE A EEEM - EE OS5 H @1 #SE
HEAMEWEMEZRE RN EHREQDTEN - w5 E5E#
RELERT A —EMER - BH1E - R ERE B &AL
fE M 2 RS EE Y HE - MRIMEATE AEROT - Mt
= [ R L B AT 1) R BE — GE S Y — R w2 BUR AT S B
(B=ik) > Ewmtey (B=s%) 2eEEE - | 2f - &
Wiy W5 MBS EETDUEME — KGR kAT A B R
ol (Baik) WREEN  BERVHE - REZ NG HUES
NG EHAZEZAEEASNEEMNESE  FEFE
{ELSE i K B B At B 28 S AR R —— R A E 2 — R
B HE T A E RN (EAR) gEARERTERA

g REERIET

F o HENEFG#HERZREMNR F2 —EMESQLT
HAES —EHFIME » REENFEBZAMETR - 2R FH
Z2fd] o A DAR R, - AR EHEREREEEN G RELN
RH - TTHIRE - WMTEERBHEEIE (EARE) UED
Y M EEEANRESE  HERER R —#HII A RRVES
NiFatam  LEFHEREE SR mEINE ? 56 37TA BREEE
N R 2 8 FI R TT - A Al DLE e - & 3 i85 (E 40 =] DLA (A
—{E T L0 FrPA o B R R B — A A DUE R (7 A A &
&) AL REEHCHE -

H
i}

I
il

Tl
[kl
M
Sk

PR

BEZ®E  #HH LR - £F - RER - REBHMILEGR
BSREABAEREEEE TINH AR - Fit  FE
EAREAREE 4 A EZ AT DN - 25 H4E 7 2 08 7
CHLT 9 H » OK? RN AE - B m A5 BIR & EFT
i HIE Y EHE > MEER  BRAERSBEEENYHKETL

-51 -



BHE 2 A5 % 1,000 jTE( % 2,000 SCH EL AR FH 7 - (B RE Ak
AL T 38 JEA -

HRE - MR ALE WHEREMF "B - K
MRERMILETEREC&IS - AT AT 2.5% - £
o MHCCIS - A ARELABENEEMEE Ty - R
FIRALELRER - $E 2 REE - TR E T g5 K #r
HH RS NBERARGAN -ENHIRES > KEE > 4
i A s s A M IE 2 BIAR S ER R N BE N FT - OK 7 {H2 » 78
RIEE P "ERER" WXRZ G EFEE - BEEER . A
17 B E 2 #OE 2 —F —EAHE R - OK? AT DL » $ 5 05 40 7]
NEEM - OK? fRERE AN - 52 7 » WA/ —5kim
B HWEABENEYEREBE TXE —F —HIFIFE - A
ZaveRGER > S EImEE BN - ERE - A=
W RN GE R Ay~ R R ER - B AL A E W B0 - 38 AL ECET B
A OK'?

fRERNE » WMTHERMELE L =B 2D AR 2 =Y 2
18 B Ama  UAARRZEGEBE L - FAISETEDHZ
DN 2 W R ARl gE T .. FAHE 200 & N DRI AE
# - OK? BEEZR AT o B4 - (R HI5 7 &iTiF
BAEEANE MM ER > HEARER - Tl - REEEM
HAZEER B8 LI FEMEC » slg g BRNRE - AW
NEEBAM - FTEE"CATNEC - B AT B Y

i1 - A2 WMSXEREHHEZRE - OK? F Izt
ENEHERE OK?EREET - FAE2BWA A2 /M EmE
UG ? WAEAFE=RRAEER BRI E &SR IRA
RZAEBE - BLFEAIIE - HIE 2 RE RN E B & (E - HIE 2
HEMEAHE"—TFT WA HE 2 EHERALEN -
EWEH  KAEER > BEARTEAZEBE -HBERRIEE
WA WEENEEHIFAMEZRE - OK?HE » WRLALE
BCE M A - HUS 2 B HDE R -

Fill s WREEERERMAME-EZFT T —EEZLF - —
EE e A7 RER "N RY o Al DL S - A R At
SHEAE OT . Z7RZ OT" BAIfRER - JLEH OT Hy#L ZEHI 2K
WaEh Bt 7 - WG - B WMEEFTE OT 2 IRZ At
B OT - HIE 2 R A EK Btz OT K5l % » RAITRERAEDN

Ao EFIRER T EHIE Y

-52 -



R

FLL » KRB LNERS » FM A K 3F 588 L2 I BOR H 80 50H
HEf » HEHSEMEBRNLABEHE - S FEMEMIA&H
A ERREEEH 2B ENER > RE —HEFER
REHEHABEESBAREE - Tl - 25 EZEGE —#E
HEAE—EE T A zke » o2 N FRER -

FTLL > SR ERAT R EEE  fERFNLFHER
R - OK » F & -
TR MEEFEE -
(7 & & # A 75 B 18 1 FE [ 8

TR TEEEE ARESAEME?

AEERE S HEF WA REZZRERRB A SEIN
MEEZEE - EeMEAmE » Bt HRASEHE - LE
B DA gEM Z g RN HEE - ENEFE - WiED
HEmR - BERAEREBEMNE R EEMEERNER - IEXE
HEH EREAR ST - FTDLE N ERZ ... M R ER 2 A EAE
%t T - BIVEE £ B ] 5 RN E R

ERE - AJLLT  FWBEERARET o

HEEZEE  EEFE - RUEBBEMES
il Wl A B8 S A 7

iz
~

IHEE - Wml

o
it

R MEEEE -



EFEEREE=FEAMEK" -

BE=EE - LR R (GEEMAD) - BRMAvEER » FE
BEEER MAEMECKER  OK? WEFEER » ## -

EF  MEES

i

s

MEZRE : IF  SBRXEFEZRENES  LE KR I
B 2et - s MR EIR"AEE" HEMOH  WEEEE
HEREBN—MFEF - B 2| KAl ZEEmAREK - #R
NEEHR—RRTEEIMRALERE - RERE — T 2R,
HEMAREE AT EEFEEREAMELERE  BRERNE
Boir o PR = EIR - IR/ D — B e

EF EREE HEARREREHENGE  NEMEHES
M HEMELER » RMEEGHES A AU 2 2R EE &
S EREMNEAE  HERIALE  Eak&kEZFgER
Rikba s NHRMENEEGHE  KEXEGREEGM - A
ERRA T AE RN E A4 HIE 2 ERESZER - #
B HAREEES . RATEER > MREANEEHREE K -
HARE  HNREGHEEFRERK - WAIFRE - HIEZH
IR R R 2 el - FrE &% 8 —ZGE I# -
{1 AN BT DA — {8 2R R o gl — (2R R - BN 2 o (HOE R
PR A 0 3R O AR I AT R R AR R—RE
EHEBRERRNER —Z KM BT s R - (R - A
R R AEE (H R -

FH o HENRF-RRBEGREERAIK  © T HEZEZ
KRGk MK > HFEEWBE - 54321, GkKEeH - &
FE 58 T - UG 2 T fa] AN AR HT 2R AE F e 2 AR B AM R Y A
R HE A M o EFE - HEEM .. WO WA e
B egmaT—8 " #HEROE " " S RN R
ANERETR 2 MEREZIR 2 SE MR - "2 W - R e
NZFEN o TTH A BER AL R R TR A — A4 G OK
HEMERSRFHMBRTR - "HIEEREENS ?RA AR
EREER . 2

- 54 -



T MM EZE LB EEE - A2 AR W
BAFEAM » BAF A - A BE BT - BT E b
I — R - (RRERLEE THREASKI - RE EH—
A FRfb BT R HERBRE R T RERRBRFH - £
=—"EEd s M T EEEE > HERAE AT - fRARHTZK
R RS Y BIREEEM G E N R - hEiE A A
B NESB SRR et ter  REERLE
AL > 2 ERE RN WA =& 2" R S
ZEEY  BTEZAREE > AN HEG - R 2ERN -
EEMERREEERNDE  REFREEHNEABEEHRE
REEOL BEEEBRZFRESR - 2 2 K5 (x it %55
FIERPE - i ERNEEE - i H AR RS - B S 75 e E
[F] WP 22 2 (R VR B E R B AR B Yt A S 5 ] DANE 2 EAR 4T EE A DA
G 2 e N EmEZEFr - 20 7

BT HEREZ S ET > BEHEREZ A SEH R RS
e RFABFEHAR FABRTER O RBE=ZZEET -
FEZERTEELEIMBEE —WHE =W EEZSHE - &
RAMIREREWE  TEESFRENERHE  REHE—
Hil AR 2B ERGRRE —F 27 - 7
EEE A" - TRARES HF 2 FEREEEFYD
Y ERAEEFRLEVERSAEEERHER "B A XYW ZH"
B IRECEREEZHERF - (RAERIEE - KRAJEEELRH
LD "ERMEEE . PREEBTRRERE (7 FFEL)
wL L E LA EE I -

|

il

H

& EEOLEKE

i

HEXSE - LHEE -

WHETTEE TET 45 > DL 16 FARE » OTDERAE
B E B R > ERREERERERETE - B
FCR(2019-20)33 5 SCfE T2 ¥ 18 B AB B INF " - M EREL
HIEBFEENHRBME - Frll M EE » B HIRE
i HMAEFIROE rEEDL - BERMNF > EHEEHRE
TR -

- b5 -



FEENIIEEERE > HESE 10 HEm > AEKEE H
98,500 JTHYHr B - B #E £ 101,000 JT » AT 37 B AR 52 2275 45 B
FTEREEFHBECENT 7L ERERBEEEE M 18 5
NBEERNHRFEERHE - LAZ"MEHE" - "Bk 05 2 (rEhH
T o

F B ARASHEVESDREGNRE B EE
EWBEAHFAETN IR AERNFTMFEE BRI - H
REAEGRER DAKEH - THFREEZRAE BB M E -

iR — E D AR E 35 P B Y B R R AR K R AL Y T AE
RGEE N WEREHEGWNE  JLERSSE5EG - fla
fe Q&A EEY 5 A DLie HENEE » Ftaw  AIDAfER %L Panel -
BEEGERHEETELET(F HEAEHFRER 3 3&H
X ERMEEEE - FHAILHE -

B2 » WA 2G5 Kt awaiE i X - HFREEHIES
BREHANBEFHRREIRET » Bl 2R 8 LS EBEFE
R ERBO oL E > RES LM Y HEEESMH
T2 AU Y RGeS mEENE  TEEEEEAE

&~ A~ E M A EEEENEINMHIELE -

il EmeEmRAERE WM LEgEHEZETRFE
WRkEE » HME —THTE gt A2 "FHREA B REE" LR
{238 B - SEBk R - HEYAAENE 2 RO -

=]

i

LR BRI BT 0y o 5 A R 1T A 22 P A M
ANEdiRlE o JERE (REAA) SIFma LE - 2B LR -

R kR E -

HERREB|E W EE -

S RA R 0+ SR BB T O M 1 R - 8 B
FERBEER  RRTHRHEGRR  BREER - 2157
A1 5 5 25 B A 0 73 3 0B B S B A P A - B P E
EEMSGHE  SHANEE  &6&HBFDMTE A
RREMTEE  MEME - BEHEL —EEH > FEwE

- 56 -



HNAITHEE R ERET - #5086 & 4 7 AN SR #& M8y
FE - ERRER > REHEEHE -

MIAMEERECKERGRERE  KXRE2GREEA - (5
"RET?TRR"HE HEE  TEXARTHEERAG -fHC
mEIEASATE T - 2B Y bl AR EARRERFEZT - &
GREEMMEEEEE - 2REEVEE - TPl R E
AREHBEREENEGAERER - 15 KF EEBRARE
HomeRFretREHEG  NRAEERG  BEH# 2 AR
FREPRTE > W7 EREFEEHE AR A K81 E (A
] e _E AN e

Bedb - S RBEELLERBEAR - G R BRAR -
SR SR K AR AR K
B H BT REE "R WE R ? RBRES A
LRSI REA (R TR R - R ? IR R
WELS A G T BRSO - W DUE MR - B R R A
4y 5 0 M 25 25 07 B T 1 (19 R <

BEEHERET  fk H BEE > MBEARE
THEE P ERKSR  WRB/RE - FA - WEARRE - kil
BFE®RW WO REELES @ RBRG D - WEERH R
RoWMRRERERBEHN B "RT" WEEHE2RAEMHE
AT R BB Y IRMERIEE » WA ERNE - FrlL
ERAE RRBEEMREN - FES - HAEE  BIRTYE -
SO~ ARS—MEAEE  2ERMUE - RAEHREZER
A B 7

fEEETTE - HRAE NEE  BARE  d2FEH - 1R
R Rl 2 E % BiREH (R EEM BEX—EEE
RPHK —HBEERIEHAESE - HEEFRE » (RTEAERKDE
FECEBABRELSE ; EEAE  XEEE L - &5 8 AR
B BB REBENHEE FEANGAHFEFEFTHEE RS
EEHHAE - BOoREE - BREEECERN - BEIFEMET - K
SN

a5 WEANBS  BARFRESENHBEEL - (K EEH
At Al AR — B R E - AP E R o R
NAEGEBIRATSE - FORFERY - B 2 bl WRBE H B
fEiE 3 i - BAMGIEE 2 o RMAAEEIRE - HIR
AR AREEH BT RE LR -

- 57 -



FRDL - 0 - B S b R I 25 @ 1 T 0 AR - B
REMHE  REFABEN  HEAFERH - BT HEEEH
AR - MBAREREHEME  FRTE - 4B E AR
I U A AR RS 7 R o B R A
9 o 8 7 9 22 B -

|

Ry - REREE -

REWRE - ZHEF > HE S F WA E 5 5w 0] 5z 3
5019 B EEEE 19 B EEREAVRHE T RARETRR
WHEAELRERE > PEREEERMTAALEE  WEK
HIR—H..... REA LR T - T T REEET . IRA R ZH ER
i AL M SR 2 A B S s B D R e

FTLL » — 20k R ARk B 730 - FL S (A B RE AR i B - B
DL 5 52 40 it 2 15 858 B 3 B i 2k S0 ik g HOoR b vE » HESE
{f — B DAARES A & SRR IR Ry 5 RGE 7l H 2Ry g8 "I
fEfI"EE 5 TMMED  SEREAREREE BHMENH
Tl BPHBEEE S NF - HEE LMy R T EE ? BEERE
B RNRSE 9 H 2% QR MM R FRE T CE BATEE ")
EEH N - MMTERIEREE Y DL - — U REE - FTDIEE
BEZHEE..... KR EH - HEE A -

5 F ISR R T A —— R R I E P 7 —— e - M
MR BEREE 9L L OT & - HEE M Ny AR ER - 5
EREANE o RICE OT & - (REER] %S —(E5 & R IH » 2li#E
HRY AW &8 H R 3 SR A SO - 35 U2 IR Y S8 B A
FHREBIREVEEBREINFGELHEE - (RXEHK L&
R ERBRELAR > AREIREURE  FEANAEZRK
i OT » A%y OT B2 2 1 Kyfa] » DU A0 SR BB B~ B 32
raIE ~ IT AR A - B NEARNTEER OT » A REE AHEE
g -

ATl WEGER —EIIEERE  XEFwm ey E
THEF » IR R A EE - HRAERELR - HIE 2 KEIRE
A A - EERNWER  EAHEE SR A BREEFEKEE 2
B A 20 B B SR - WA R - IR M B R - AR R
it - R EHMER P EBERNE  FHEBERMMAS

- 58 -



w o IRRAIE - (RAIEGE Al DL > 08 2 B+ & A 2T 999
WE - EREFEEGRIKRE K ANZRKESFETLL . B
—HEEES B AERERKES - HE - (RMEHOK
ZAEE  PRTRERE - REEME -

HOREERIFEFE EH - RS XN - HEHY......#)
e 8 — LA B B S F » RERO"HEE - R EAEN
oo MRREERIA LA B E O - DAE A EE L
BEIFE - ERETLLT  2ENXE > AH"ED "R LA
o HEfRERE . KR TERLSFE - AEMFEALL > K
B R FGEE R G TR Y E R B IE AT E TS E " B2 (R
FHEH &R - BEHIRMER - KR B H R - A7 DUSCES (] B 32 H
B R - BIEE I % & 2 DR 8 25 TR 1] - 3R AE AR A2 B 88 2k a3
e AN DR 2R LR o B — S B R ARER - BB B HH KT R e
EEHREGES"HABE"? 20 ENEH S —HITMEF I
g7 ARG KEIRNEHEERGRE . AR -G
HpEAmEAn WREEMA BFL—HFEE H HEH - £
g NEREHCOCWER  MRZEHCSWILG T 2HA -

EE - ARGHERZERHOOTERERKY » (7 FHE
AVHRMEEEZREFRZEHEAEE AN - G MEZEGHLY -
i

R BEJDLEEA S50 -

Rk @BE - ARKRAETER > TEELRKZEFIRNESE
tHE M WEE AR A - HIRE - EE - R E
HEE - HEE  NIEMER (R EHIEE - o 2% 67 2
IKFEIHE R - HE g EREREEEN IR FHH R
FE - BEREE RS - B R - R DU M2 2 ey 2
frZ 5t 100 XREH - ffIE2% 100 XimE - EAFIEN -
RE#&ELT  RMEEANCKEES T /RHEH AR AAm"
B o AL & A 2 G RMAVER - MR - IR ESHF - &
RN~ BUF >~ BEOL > MR IRAE I - WEHERER
AIREHE  XAF A EREFELEFUEELE » —F5H
NEGEA M » WAEREEEHRE - e !

HAEBRMZERRFE - e M EIRMEREDI" LB A -
ENEEINFCESR e E  EFEE - SEREX
- 59 -

it



MomER - el hER - S22 ERE - S -
Bir s HERE > TRAEAEZXFRMEMILSH » FEHEAE
EREHWE 2 AMOTRESR  REFILEGARLEREEFE - (K
BN EERGHERGRE Y IR E®R - A EE 2R M
DA fy e wEE - AR RE ALY - (R EFEE - B 78
FEZ "R e TIEE XA - AN ERZNY o MM ELER - &
A2y BEARE - HWMERHE  KEEMMASRE
R AR ERE > mERERE - e R E M
g e fRffE R R — N — k" R R FE S 2
MRZ&ZZCERESIHIRM - g - 2 EZ LM
AREMRMEREEE  AEREMRMAOFHIEY  HBECMRE
- EEE ARE - -MERFZENHREY - LNEMAE AT
REZMBELE  ERXANTRLEZMNEE » HE &I
BV % WERZ AN RErEEAN - HAHEIFRE®EEFERE
2o MEREEHEERN - FEERAERESE? RHRRE » A
e RBEHMEREGRAESE?H#EMFEHRZE  FAE 7 K
EEZHC -

AR TE - BB TR IR AT R AR - TEE
Fy P M e 5% 2 2 Bk - EB BB DLRT 22 [ B DLtk - M5 2 A0 =
EHEEEFR o EEMEEEN  AERMESE =02 —
m=sE - KA DQ ZHfE - FH =1 — - HMEZHIK - (KM
A REK - R R E T RIK - i REAECRRE R - M
BEBMEMFPIRENEANNE > OFEHEE > SIMEEE
g N FIRGEZBIK - 52BN HE— 5k S RM1E
EGEANEIER .. AR R M A IR - RO R IEE 2
ATRERN > AMHFEZERNEE ST ROAE - GOFEUE K
ek EARBIEHFEMENS - &P4E 9 A - (RFMERE E R
{238 ZAYZ B R — 2 v CAIE A G 2 =2 0 s - IRAHEFRTER
Sl BRI E BB EEE AR ETRAAER - NEEE S
AR RMEFE LR EF FTRENVRBRLER > HERIEK
HMEEEREM T RERMERKEMVEND » THIHRED
TEEEETERTERRE M EEERMERFREEF
=+ - E e N EE RERK - (7 F &% EL)

T HRAFEMEZEEZ THRSZHM  EEBRACTEK - RAE
Wi 3 HZEER  BAMIOHE  #HERERELEN - i
LR E o W8 e

- 60 -



KENBEE - ZH LR - HARENEREREREES  H
HEEHFK REEZNFRFEERE T REEZAERNTE
BRAERMEERER > RMAKE RN LEBRNTR  EEE
fThie? HERIE  BHME - MEKEEME A IRER E
MAREZIT —8& - B —REEEILER - FARE MRS E
EME @Y UE  HEXRMEERFER -B6H 12HEH
£ BIRZELEEN - MetE LB - K 3 B R R
FRTE? ERBEREMN - RE RRERNES . FERLTE"
WM HEAR - bl ARV B RETHE A
EHE - EHENREEFREZAMEIESE - L2 F2ERSE
HERMRAEEHRZAEEE ~HLDE  RMEBEBEREEES
[ HLAZR IR FHE - REPHREREZERENSGEENE - A
Ao KRZERHEHBEERER & - MR AETLE # R OL 5 &IN5
BELE MRESERMS S  FREECEEAEMNR - BRA
HMwy5an - 525 a » 28K BT RS FEEGR -~ 8 E
Y] IEN R M SRR ST - Al Mk IR A SRR AT - At A
fEoe A g I WM BEEEEE - BHRALESRE
FEFHBITDEZEERDEERLE ? BRMEEGET R
e & (7 i e ZRE)W B H G R R E T TH e » £ -

il

EE o IRRRE T o HRNIRBHEE BN TER - B awE
BIRAEAS S - WM EMBIRE HEIORRAXF - WhHE - K
R EHEf o WAMTRRERE -

FoEHELTEC FMEAEF B=HEHE A B
#2772 B B for boy - 5 {H 2% D dog - sk — (26
THAEE - WH®RHEHE & - X2 C-F A boy f1 D £
B E -

Al N E » HIRNGE 6 i 7 2 A PR R B A M R 4
AL — i 5 2= 12 H R 1S - BRI &8 B RE $#i
o RERERAEHE P AREERR -

Bt WieH"AZEGRW C HE"FRFEE - AL
KRR HERA......

CEI-EFS TF 9

- 61 -



ERE RREGES o -

(¢ R 2 22 g FIT 2P REED)
(KR EEEHE - FH#AER LEEHG  BERLEBEHETE
M)

EFEMECE > WAGHEHK  XKZHEET - FHCE - F
HL P AEE R - (IRE B » a1 18 B A 8 B (e 2
HAKHE -

(KR BERH R - 7 G L EEH )

ERE - MBEAERE  WREHBAFM - KFELEE XA - HE
REMBEBSTAE XM WAL KHY -

(KR BEEEHE - FaAEE LEEHRT  BEREFHEMNEL
R )

EREMEREE?MERXNF ?EZ.... . KFREHE L
BT EREHANE - RFEARRSHE - WA 28 178X - Wl
AEHETHR - HANERMEMEE - R - {288 1T

ERHEC

(KR BERHE] - 7 G LEEH )

ERE - REFFE - -BEMFEEEKRMARE SEHRT
WEURH AR » NEMEFE LR - HAEF 2 CHE -

rECBMEEFRF B=2 A BHEB FHLED BN

==
m D



ER U AEREAENEEX M ELEFEE A B C»

E: REMBAAEZEZE - REGH » RECEMHED - Zli %E
REHEBITRENEER  UIEZEGHE —Z@HEE 19 REEN
Ry - DU IHE FCR(2019-20)33 Jx H & HAIEE T fe Hi HY
19 BRE

(ZREEZELH G B 2# BB F 7 ERSF)

BREE&HE - L > BRERIFHEC MARGE C i » &
CIREE S Nl

EFE AL APl - BRZERBEEER - BEER —H77 E W
feHEBE LR EEEBE -FEH -

AR FEMIMI T - E#E K- B —EHETEC 5
ehEFB=HegAEA FUHEEFEB FHEESTED:
FHANEBTEE -

(KR BEELHE  BRFZETNERET)

(]

EFEBELH REREE? FBREMRZEE PR - F5L R0
ek A BAR" TR B M AR E

il

MMEFHE - ER - AW EZH - T ERE S E DY

R AERIEZH Y

M EZE  HLF" éfhjZ CRCEUAITEERE" > AT RE ST E DY
REA-B- C D ZZ?{% multiple choice F £ 0% 2

ERE A2 AR RERZHEKREN -

LR VTS

ﬁi.li

B

- 63 -



ERE : RMRE - —E2EFZHRHRER - TR EK

MMERE - AR TFHRERERERE -

(KR EELH ] BXZFHERT 7 ERE)

R ENEERE FM

AR X EREE - RRAYIER - WRBMAEERKRE » B —
T ERER  ZAERERER Z%ﬁﬁ%@?%&$@7
EEERAE-HAERRE  RREERENIEEB L ?

ER - HIAAREREAGERE - RECHSE > #ZF —HAE
WNFEFEFEBL > REEGELRE  FAEHRR -

(F R B ERE S 77 4 R)

EF BHEMBRR - MAEFEERR - BUREERR 16 ZE

Ao 31 ZESCH - 0 AR - WEMZEEE SR -
T—HEAEF KEEMTEFORNEHEL - FREANE

REGARR?

CCEF-EFS T

ERE RREGES o -

(7 2 B D)

- 64 -



ERFETEM ML EEETAARME 5B 19 BREENHEE
AAMEBHE - EENARZEREZFHBR  BEEGHEKER
BEgFRESREHE  BEhAlEmERELERE > DIREEN AR
FIFRIRZHE - EEREHEREN T -

(KR EBEEZLS 77 # %)
R BAERKBERR - HAEFEELRR BREERR 17 28
Ao 32 FENCH - 0 IR - WEMZEEE SR -
AN
|
CGCEFEFS T
ERE RREGES o -
(7 R 2 2 R

EFR:EMAEREZ2E (MBLZEGIRERF) B 37TA B -
% B e Fr E R R e L TH H FCR(2019-20)33 T HYZS 19 BRak = -

(F Rt B E RS 77 4 KR)
R BAAEMRBERR - BAEFELRRR BEREEME 18 28
AR 32 FRIH - O M - WEMZREES IR -
mEM TR BETRR
CCEF-EFS T

ERERREGES o -

- 65 -



(7 k2 B 2 E)

Iiﬁ fi%E B E’\]@%% B2ELZEgREEZERE (UH XA
GERERr) B 21 Rt EE R EEE LR 2R/ ER
i‘Fé (DM BRD) (FRENEERHNERRNER - #&ZE
ffr e Ak B IH H FCR(2019-20)33 FHYZS 19 ek =€

(F Rt B E RS 77 4 KR)
EFE BHEMKBRR - MAEFEIERR - BUREERR 18 ZHE

Ao 33 FELCHS - O FEEME - WEAMZHEE DR -

EEMTEDETRR  A#HERERENTZE -

i’e»

EERREGES o -
(7 R 2 D)

EREREEGTENE HEDZ "MEgEFHREEH
FCR(2019-20)33 WyfEfr » B2 Gab A T EZTHE G A (#
BREGGEERF) FI9OKRNEGHRT - ERAIRRZHHM R R
e BrL - AR K F M R#ERE T ZE D YEE - WM E G LRI R R
e E A

(Z R BEEAL S 77 # &)

EFE  BHAEMBRR - WAEFEIERR - BUREER

Ao 18 FERCHS - 0 SEEEME - WEA R EEEE -
HRZEGERRERMWLTED - REBEZSTE - ZEag AN

RFRRELTFETHEEGRE - ﬁﬁuﬁ%&i?i PR ERE © "HLE

e

g FCR(2019 20)33 B zl:;calfl AT (B 7%
FHRZF) 5 19 BRATm Y E SR -

- 66 -



HAREE  WMEHE  FER R HRET RS - B
HARRR - REAEAERULRR? FEAERYAE
SETT RS IPY

(7 k2 B 2 E)

EE:ARZEHE > FIRE"FETHE" MURXEZENEE
HIE? FIR—EZH"AE"W - (M ERE » 2"BR"ZEE"
”:f"\ {. AFk 2 EE

A — IR R > MR ARFMIEHREENRRAGR B "HR"
MZEGREBEAFETHEEEAME  REFRERR » &K%

WMEZBE ERZHSHMOIRF  MEBRZABRER - FR
R —T - Ale & Eszmmn -

(Kt B EE S 77 # )

R ﬁfﬁ%%ﬁ°ﬁf%i%ﬁ’ﬁrﬁﬁﬁﬁiw$%
Ak 33 FENH - O EER - - WEMAZEG R REHAE R

E R R R R R R R i b b b b R b R e b i b b b b e e e e b e b b b b o R e e e e b b b

- 67 -



